

Opportunities and Challenges with Afghanistan's Transboundary Waters



# A Review of Current and Possible Future Relations in Amu River Basin

Duran Research & Analysis

October, 2017

## Opportunities and Challenges with Afghanistan's Transboundary Waters

# A Review of current and possible future relations

# Amu River Basin

By Sediga Hassani

Edited by

Dr. Glen Hearns

Duran Research & Analysis

October 2017

Duran Publications, 2017 Kabul, Alphanistan

Duran Research & Analysis Galai Fathu Jah Khan Mina, Kabul Afghanistan Telephone: +93 202 212 152 Website: www.duran.af

THe: Opportunities and Chellenges with Alghanistan's Transboundary Waters: A Review of current and possible future relations in Amu River Basin

Edited by: Dr. Olen Hearre

#### Copyright 02017, Duran

All rights reasored, he part of this path-barries may be meroschood, distribution, or transmitted in any form or by any means, including photosopying, recording, or other electoria or mechanical methods, without the provisation permission of the path-barries reacing in this case of the quantities methods in critical views and certain other monoscentremost uses permitted by copyright have. For permission negative, twist to the path-barries have and including the path-barries and including view of the college 0-yalls of 221 k152.

#### Admoniationente

Down schenderkyse the Trevel support of Urbrid Status Institute of Places in the postcritton and publication of this paker, paper. The views and capriors forwarded in this paper are those of the outbres based on a synthmic of Instatuse noises and low prioritamic transviews. They do not increasely hybrid the views of the government of Alghamittan, Duran, the United States Institute of Places, or any particular count framework.

Front cover image: Panj River, Dasht e Archi, Kunduz 2017, Image courtesy Jim Huglebroek,

About the Author Bedgue Heasawaii III a Civil Engineere appealance in Hydrology and Water Resources Management, Shin Ia Shichayil Schlark with an maater's allegale frame. Colorado Elitate University, UBA, Elitera 2014, Sedigh has been waiting as an institutor and interactive at Allowing thereafter in Allowing American Strategies and American Strategies thereafter in Allowing American Strategies American Strategies fielded and American Strategies American Strategies American Interactive American Strategies American Strategies American Strategies American Interactive American Strategies American Strategies American Strategies American Interactive American Strategies American Strategies American Strategies American Strategies American Interactive American Strategies American St

> Sediga has conducted research with different organizations including, USAD, US National Academy of Science, Heinrich-Bid-Stiftung and Doran Research and Ankylos, She has been one of the Principle Investigators and grant recipient of Partnerships for Enhanced Engagement in Research (PEER), the ULS National Academy of Science's research program finded by UIBAD acnual de world.

> Sediga Hassani has more than ten years of working experience with different national and international organizations on a variety of water projects in Aghanistan. She is currently working with Ministry of Astrochure. Introduction and Levelock as a water excert.

Alexed Darm Duron Research & Andyreis is an independent and mo-powerments and the second sec

## Table of Contents

List of Figures
List of Tables
Glossary and Abbreviations.
Executive Summery vi
Recommendations
General Recommendations
Recommendations for the Pani-Amu Dava Basin
htroduction. 1
Scope and Context 3
The Importance of Transboundary Rivers
Afghanistan's Need to Develop its International Rivers
Slepe Taken in the Water Sector
Existing Legal and Institutional Structures. 12
Introduction and Context of The Pari-Amu Darya Basin
Hydrological Backgrounds/surface and Groundwater Transboundary Resources
Main Water Uses, Infrastructure and Potential for Development
Legal Considerations 23
Potential Challenges for WMmanagement in the Pani-Amu Darya
A Need for Strong Political Will, 28
Lack of Good Governance. 29
hsufficient Infrastructure and Equipment
Climate Change, Extreme Water Events; Flood and Drought
Destructive Floods
Failure in River Bank Protection
Policy Gaps /Limited Implementation
Need for Skilled/ Experienced Human Resources
Data Gaps and Uncertainty in Knowledge of Water Resources/ Lack of Transparency in
Sharing Hydrological Data
Legal Challenges
A Later Developed State
Limited Public Awareness
Population Increase and Demand Rise, and Economics
Opportunities in the Panj-Amu Darya Basin
Analysis and Discussion. 44
Recommendations. 46
General Recommendations:

Recommendations for the Panj-Amu Darya Basin	49
Conclusion	51
References	53

# List of Figures

Figure 1: Major River Basins of Afghanistan (MEW, 2011)	5
Figure 2: Main Organizations Dealing with Water in Afghanistan	2
Figure 3: Transboundary Water Committee	3
Figure 4: Distribution of Area and Water Resources in Amu Darya Basin (FAO 2012)	6
Figure 5: Main Water Sources of Alghanistan in the Amu Darya (Duran 2017)	8
Figure 6: Water Flow and Water Withdrawal in Central Asia (Victor Novikov and Phili	p
Rabcewicz UNEP/GRID-Regional April 2005)	ò
Figure 7: Location of Proposed Upper Amu and Dushtjum Dam Sites (Parj Amu Investmer	ı
Plan: 2013)	đ

## List of Tables

Table 1: Socio-Economic Development Indicators in the Region	.8
Table 2: Average Annual Flow to Amu Darya from Each Riparian Country	17
Table 3: Irrigation Systems Mainly Managed by MEW & MAIL	21
Table 4: Existing Hydropower and Multi-purpose Dams in Panj-Amu Basin	22
Table 5: Proposed Large Multi-Purpose Projects	22
Table 6: Extraction Limits for Amu Darya as per Protocol 566	23

## Glossary and Abbreviations

ADB	Asian Development Bank
ANPDF	Afghanistan National Peace and Development Framework
BVO	River Basin Organizations
CAR	Central Asian Republic
ECAFE	Economic Commission for Asia and Far East
ECIFAS	Executive Committee of IFAS
EU	European Union
UNFAO	United Nations Food and Agriculture Organization
GEF	Global Environment Facility
GWP	Global Water Partnership
ICWC	Interstate Coordinating Water Commission
FAS	International Fund for Saving the Aral Sea
NBOV	International Net of Basin Organizations
<b>I</b> WRM	Integrated Water Resources Management
NATO	North Atlantic Treaty Organization
MAIL	Ministry of Agriculture, Irrigation, and Livestock
MEW	Ministry of Energy and Water
MEA	Ministry of Foreign Affairs
RBO	River Basin Organization
UNDP	United Nations Development Programme
UNESCAP	United Nations Economic and Social Commission for Asia and the
	Pacific
UNESCO	United Nations Educational, Scientific, and Cultural Organization
USAID	United States Agency for International Development
WB	World Bank
WMO	World Meteorological Organization
WUA	Water Users Association
WWC	World Water Council

#### Executive Summary

The aim of this paper is to familiarize the reader with the key elements associated with Transbourdery Weisen is Adjanizitian and here implications on pickly development. The report synthesizes howledge and different perspectives of many experts working in the area of Transbourdery Weisen, Indrain ga, at latengt is obtained for many points of convergence of opinions is the form of recommendations and highlights those areas where more work is meeded to built accommon vision.

As the pressures of honosang demand for water and charais charaps integrat the region downteams, counties are boording increasingly more interested in how divergingent of Algunization may impact them, Likewise, over the last serveral years the government of Algunization may impact them, Likewise, over the last serveral years the government of algunization and increasing of the interportance of regrapsing and discussing isoscila concorreling international first which is downteamine religiblious to ensure that the precisions water resources in the integration are used in the more affective say possible. This region helps to advance those discussions by revening the situation and dowlapsing caree possible ways forwards for premoting cooperation and water measurement in the Plangitud trans that the situation of the situation and provide plane transfer and the plane transfer and plane transfer and the situation and dowlapsing caree possible ways forwards for premoting cooperation and water measurement in the Plangitud transfer allows.

This paper begins by presenting a brief overview of Transboundery Rivers, Berry importance, and Aphicatian's need to device the Intansboundery selectroneces. In Addition, I highlights this achievements of the Aphica government since 2001 in regards to be well resource management. Mos, the paper books at the source of galant instantional and hardworks and the Aphica and the source of galant instantional structures of Aphicational structures and the source of galant instantional structures of Aphicational structures and the source of galant instantional structures of Aphicational structures and the source of galant structures and the instantional structures and the source of galant structures and the instantional structures and the source optication of management in Aphications.

The paper is focused on cultimity the context for cooperative development in the Papi-Ann Dany Basin. The Basin is hrems to more hand 5 mBAps paped and is shared by Apparatan. Taplicata. Turkenenian, and Uzbakitas. The Papi-Ann covers over \$30,000 km<sup>-2</sup> for Apparatan. In covers mark 9/45 of Apparatan. Surface area, contributes approximately for Apparatan. In covers mark 9/45 of Apparatan. Surface area, contributes approximately \$20 is to the covery second water yield and the same \$25 or Apparation papeldin. The importantly, here is a good failed or gootunity to develop used resources in the region for the importantly, here is a good failed or gootunity to develop used resources in the region for the

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> The Pariyi-Irru Dorya Basin is boated in the mountains of the Hindukush and Pareir strapes with an elevation range of 2000m to 0000m above mean sea level. The upper period of the Basin is called the that flower, which objacate from the Pareir at the Adjace-Chinese bodies. After the contentions with the Valitation Flower, which rever the Alla is Kingraphia. The source is called the Ana Darya. This google upper team the team that a single optimized the effect of the team to all is Kingraphia. The source is called the Ana Darya. This google upper team the team that are find the team to be entited basis.

attention towards infrastructure development that other basins in Afghanistan have enjoyed over the last 15 years, this underscores the potential opportunities in the region.

In general Adjantation uses approximately 20-25% of the notices under a parent parameters in the Parench-Copy Base Marco Korotsyn han ave with and repaticles appear bare manager - 166-110 mitophappa error of the Base and the sea with, and repaticles are to the Parenchouse Strategies and the sea of the Adjantation and possibilities for improve the Adjantation and possibilities in the imposite and the Ideation and the Adjantation and the Ideation and Ideation and the Ideation and Ide

This paper elucidates the primary challenges should a developing country like Algebraristan anticipate dealing with its transboundary waters. The challenges range from political matters to technical issues. This research revealed two types of challenges: i) internal relational level fullenges, and is external (international or transboundary) challenges.

Internal issues include, tao' d expertise (human capital), inadequate institutional copart), wintelide discussion of an experimental and an experimental and an experimental tars and/or transboardary water matters, unavaitability of budget (increatery initiational) and water catality (bud subtos and grandwater), somory dates, "Environmental metal external and budget and an experimental and budget (increatery initiational) and external and an external and an external static of cooperation between Adjustmentan and somo Centerial Adata countries, population grandri and and instativitation on toth sides, dimetas change, and the zero-sum mindeal in the region with abuchar winness modered before.

There are also positive opportunities for Afghanistan and its neighbors to cooperate on the Amu Darva River Basin in the future. These include:

- The existing political will and commitment to work together between the government of Afghanistan and Tajkistan;
- · Growing informal activities such as joint studies and researches;
- Areas of potential mutual benefit such as flood control, erosion control (improving investment for downstream infrastructure maintenance) and joint power development;
- The possibility to link water development with other areas such as energy and transportation

Finally, the paper presents the conclusion and recommendations on the transboundary waters in the country as a whole, and on transboundary waters of the Parij-Amu Dary Basin in particular.

#### Recommendations

These recommendations, in addition to an analysis of both literature and reference materials, primarily stems from the thoughts and considerations of experts in advancing Afghanistan's position with respect to transboundary waters. The recommendations here provide a practical starting point to help assess policy on transboundary waters.

#### General Recommendations:

#### leeve 1:

There is a tack of a clear coordinated strategic galan for future developments in each basis which work all dow Aphaesian to understand and studiogo with molphours regarding future uses. At the national level, a comprehensive national availar makes gala is medicio. This work highlight Aphaesiana have water exocute goods and improvement is each needs. This work to an amount future and an available of the state of the state of the state of the task and the state of the state to a needs force in a cardian province of states. Eitherly, for the regional level, there is no down moderation in flates, which addresses the concernent debursteres provinces.

#### Recommendation 1:

- a. At the national lived, develop duar, well experiented and approved (mittal) bains (there within can be used on a basis for random water infrastructure development, as well as in discussions with neighbours on trans boundary water issues. These basis (place whole include beam specific dramber change adaptation stratistics) and attributes the rais of international argunizations such as UNEP or World Bark in the implementation process.
- b. At the transboundary level, an assessment should be carried out to examine potential benefit sharing with neighbore, as well as any potential negative effects of developments in Alghanistan. These assessments should be carried out for each basin and serve as the basis for strategic engagement with neighbore.

#### laque 2:

There is a problem associated with data availability and accuracy that leads to a tack of confidence. Based on the feedback from most of the key informants interviewed, existing data is not accurate and reliable. Data availability and accuracy will play a big role in making basin plans, and in regulations with co-rigarian states.

#### Recommendation 2:

An assessment of data collection agencies/institutions and prioritization of data collection stations

- Creation of a comprehensive list of the existing priority issues and challenges in data collection acencies
- b. Assessment of Hydro-metaeotocycal atations and prioritizing stations based on their degree of significance. Priority stations should receive most of the marabale resources, attention and incentives, particularly in locations where operation and maintanance is difficult, such as stations in border areas with less security or those at high attrades with harsh demic conditions.
- c. Improving hydro-meteorological data collection and the reliability of data and increasing the use of GIS and other remote sensing programs.

#### leeue 3:

Poor relations among transboundary water institutions including poor data and information sharing between these agencies.

#### Recommendation 3:

Strengthen the relations between transboundary water institutions:

- a. Regular meetings of the Transboundary Water Commission (TWC) in order to allow transboundary water institutions to discuss their reliabel works. Is addition, consistent discussion of transboundary water related issues at platforms such as Supreme Council of Land and Water (SCoLW).
- b. Improving data sharing mechanisms to main data available for key polosytotesion making ministriles, institutions and even the academia, Regular data and information sharing is needed, especially between MEW and the NPA. In addition, create a mechanism where MAU, and MEW can share hydrological data such as through a joint data base.

#### lasua 4

Duplication and/or gaps in institutional roles and responsibilities associated with transboundary waters.

#### Recommendation 4:

Clearly define the roles and responsibilities of organizations related to transboundary waters, beyond what is described in the 2009 Water Law. This would best be achieved through the formilization of a transboundary water rational policy.

#### leave 5:

Lack of Afghan lad interventions

#### Recommendation 8:

Engage more Alghan experts, both at the corrier and in provinces to prepare the national and river basin marker plans in an adequately contextualized manner. These plans will reflect the reality of the basins in terms of transboundary waters, the demands on uses in the tastins, the economic benefits for the ocurrity as a whole and the level of impact on water availability to neighbouring ocurrities.

#### leave 6:

Lack of public awareness on transboundary waters issues.

#### Recommendation 0:

Focus on developing extensive knowledge base including material on international protoces and regulations of shared water resources. It is important that the public is made aware of the significance of water in driving economic development and its role in improving stendard of hings.

- Involve media, social networks, and civil society organizations from Afghanistan, Pakistan as well as Central Asian republics, by conducting joint regional programs conferences,
- b. Provide research opportunities for the academia and research organizations to explore the global history of the management of transboundary waters and its lessons learned.

#### leeve 7:

Maintaining and enhancing donor support for transboundary water development,

#### Recommendation 7:

Strategically engage donors to assist with enhancing technical capacity and assessments, provide tacitation for dialogue, and eventually assist in supporting infrastructure divelopment.

#### leeve 8:

Lack of local knowledge and expertise to deal with transboundary water issues.

#### Recommendation 8:

Enhance local knowledge and skills to deal with transboundary waters. For example, work with Alghan Universities to teach transboundary waters at the higher education level. In addition, take advantage of local knowledge that exists in Alghanistan regarding water resources, including engagement of recent Alghan graduates of this field from abroad

#### lesus 9:

Groundwater has not been discussed in relation to transboundary water at almost any lavel.

#### Recommendation 8:

Enhance understanding and instweedge regarding the key importance of groundwater resources that may exist and be shared with neighboring countries. In discussions with neighbors, effort should be made to identify and understand potential transboundary water resources and dawke provisions for their fluxm emagement.

#### Recommendations for the Panj-Amu Darya Basin

#### leeve 10:

There is a lack of concrete dialogue with northern neighbours on water allocation issues, and Alghanistan risks being sidelined if it does not actively engage.

#### Recommendation 10

Start dialog and trust building by data sharing, joint technical studies, technical assistance and academic exchange

- a. In the case of the Pari-New Darya, conduct joint studies between Alphanistan and Central Asian Countries over the Bood control and riverback protection. The joint studies, for exempte, can be started with Tajivistan, which already has a signed MUO with Adhanistan on data sharing.
- b. The government should take advantage of projects like SMART WATERS and PEER project, USAD funded projects for Adjunisten and Central Asian Countries, to promote and support knowledge exchange and joint research initiatives between academic inductions in Addimiser and the Central Asian countries

#### innue 11:

The Parij-Amu Darya basin has great potential for hydropower generation and has the largest potential for increased agricultural production in Afghanistan, However, its development has not received enough internal attention and its role in contributing to national economic development in Afghanistan remains highly under-explored.

#### Recommendation 11

- a. Take advantage of the favorable transboundary situation in the Panj-Amu Darya basin to invest in water resource development. It will be beneficial for balancing population density across the country, preventing internal migration to large cities, and boosting country's load productivity.
- b. Intensity work on implementing the signed MoU with Tajkistan and expand that to cooperation on joint Adptas-Tajk projects indusing the Upper Parj-Aeru Daya and Datafisjin dama. Plomote the potential bands sharing of a more regulated river with downtream ocurrise regarding food control, misimizing bank erosion, and reducing sediment transport issues.
- Promote the development of internal hydropower generating capacity on the major tributaries of the Amu Darva.

#### leeve 12

Alghanistan is not a member of any regional organisations in the Amu Darya that are dealing with water management,

#### Recommendation 12

Alghanistan should strongly consider joining, or becoming an observer, to the regional water organisations, such as IFAS, to ensure its presence and secure its interests in future regional water deals.

Actively take part in existing regional programs initiated by international organizations such as the "Central Asia Energy and Water Development Program" by the World Bank,

#### leave 13;

More emphasis is needed to link water related issues, such as Afghan water development, with other economic drivers in the region.

#### Recommendation 13

Expand the economic development initiatives, such as TAPI, CASA 1000, and the railroad transport project with Turkmenistario/ther Central Asian Countries to create joint water projects including hydropower generation and lood protection in Panj-Amu Darya Basin with support of International donors and organizations

#### Introduction

The pupper of this paper is to timilitative the reader with the tary elements associated that provide the pupper is to timilative the reader with the tary elements associated angue synthesizes house-dags and effective properties of many puppers society in the area of puppers and the pupper social synthesizes and the pupper society of the area of oppinois in the form of recommendations and heights the outwork the many puppers work of the society of the pupper social synthesizes and the pupper entitled Advantative Transboard within the Advantative the analysis of the output pupper social synthesizes and the pupper social synthesizes and entitled Advantative Transboard within the Order which was published in 2005, and focusions on advancing to door social synthesizes and option synthesizes and and the public synthesizes and the public synthesizes and the public synthesizes and advantative the synthesizes and the public synthesizes and the public synthesizes and advantative the synthesizes and the synthesizes and advantative the transboard advantative the synthesizes and advantative the synthesizes and advantative the synthesizes and advantative the synthesis and ad

Adjustmits is lational with large the source of several reporter from basies on the several reporter from adjustment and lates several resources and baddy separationally 2000 Interdesignets' between; the adjustment is not even throughout the several reporter from the several reporter of the several reporter of the several reporter from the several reporter of the several reporter of the several reporter of the several reporter is not several reporter of the several reporter of the several reporter of the several reporter is not several reporter to the several reporter of the several reporter of the several reporter is not several reporter of the several reporter of the several reporter of the several reporter is not several reporter of the several reporter of not research reporter on the reso through to maintain the several reporter of the several reporter of not research reporter on the reso through to maintain the several reporter of not research reporter on the reso through to maintain the several reporter of not resonance in registrian and readows below the several reporter of the resonance of the resonance approximation in relational several registrian and responsible provides a relation of the several reporter of the several resonance of the several reporter on the reso through to advance of the several reporter on the several reporter of the several reporter of the several reporter on the several reporter of the several

The government is increasingly interested in addressing transboundary water issues with its neighbours. Adjuaristan currently has one water agreement with Iran on the Helmand River, withich was neighbourd in 1973. Under that agreement, Iran is to get 20 m/Nec water in normal and wet years. togeniously, the treaty provides for dought conditions by reducing the amount fair can use in monotom to the decrease in available water due to the dought.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> This is based on averaging a marbor of studies, it accounts for only surface water generated in Afghanisters, it does not take into account water flawing from Polisize into the Kunar system.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> GA (2015) The Wold Factoox - Algerman Retrieved 27 June from www.cla.govBoarypublicationalTec-woldfactooxigeositChini

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup> National Comprehensive Aprior and Development: Priority Plan 2016-2020, Ministry of Agriculture, Infgation and Livestone, August 2016 weaklish at https:/pddsymol.gov.uh/wp-centers/upback/2016/07/Comprehensive-Agriculture/ Development-Program.pdf

developing that advantageous agreement with Iran, Alghanistan has not entered into any significant dialogue with other neighbours. This stuation is changing, however, as the effects of increased demand for water in the region collide with the impacts of timate change.

Countries in the region now reade the importance of effectively, overlaping their varies noncornex is strainable accountie featurement accounties of the apparatual accounties in the apparatual accounties and an approximate accounties and approximation material accounties and advantation accounties and accounting activity accounting accounting

As where resources bacom increasingly importer as an embersion for economic gravity, it will also become more importing the law time methods and efficiently will be contributed with the region. Obtail experiments about with proceedings and efficiently will be provided with the region. Obtail experiments about with an excertise are block with proceedings and within the region. Obtail experiments about within the control of the region. Obtail experiments about within the region obtail and the second obtail and the there will be region that are experiments and environments, region the requery of the relation to be about the ange. In the resources and environment, region the requery of institution to be also the the ange.

Communication, interaction and effective institutions help ensure that water scarce situations lead to greater cooperation. Cooperation is always more cost effective and coonemically beneficial than conflict, yet institutionally more difficult to manage at the beginning as it requires communication and trust (Greation et al., 2005; Well et al., 2003).

As the pressures of increasing demand for water and dimake change impact the region, downstream countries are becoming increasingly more interested in how development in Algheridan may impact them. Likewise, over the last several years the government of Algheridan has increased its averenees of the importance of engaging and discussing issues concerning intermational interes with its downstream neighbours to ensure that the proclose water

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>5</sup> See Abdulah Urges Regional Dospension at High Level Water Conference, Toto News June 2015, http://www.bionews.com/atghanisteriabdalah-urges-egipted-cooperation-high-level-water-conference.

resources in the region are used in the most effective way possible. This paper helps to advance those discussions by reviewing the situation and developing some possible ways forward in the Anu River Basin.

This paper also presents a beforeverse of transformatry waters, their importance, and Appanisher's near to develop its translocularity water resources. In addition, it hip/lights the adversements of the Appan government since 2001 in regard to its water resource and Appanisher's water endowed well below the development of the adversement of the Appanisher's water endowed well below the development of the Appanisher's water endowed well below the Appanisher's well below the Appanisher's water endowed well below the Appanisher's water advector of the Appanisher's well below the Appanisher's water advector and the Appanisher's water advector advector

Monover, this paper discusses the Amu River Basin, the existing challenges, opportunities and institutional needs in the basin. Finally, the paper presents the conclusion and recommendations on the transboundary waters in the country as a whole, and on transboundary waters of the Amu River Basin in contrictar.

#### Scope and Context

Water is a constanting rescurse altering many seture including approxima, mening, mening and use casa, and makany. As a Industrent later in a function wait is readered and by the heat populations. At a mean submotion blead, it is a power/late including and the seture is a submotion blead. The power does been approximate developing methods waits and the seture and an advantation blead. The developing method is a submotion of the seture and an advantation of the end of the seture and the seture and the power is the seture of the developing method. The seture as the by point is the theory and the developing methods are been as the by point to the theory and the developing methods. The seture as the by point to the theory and the meangement in Adjunctions, effected hearpen integration metangies, national patients associated with power (indication and property agriculture, amongot at them.

The substantive imput into this paper comes from two mans sources. The first being a Binarium envice of gradies, publications and documents that much and Aphanismish frambioundary metres. The second, and more important sources is them interviews conducted with up equarks also being with and binariability print salend tal biophysical and write the source of the second source and the second source and the second source of minimum and the second source and the second source of minimum and the second source and the second so

#### The Importance of Transboundary Rivers

Transburding views are those river that either cross texteenes one country in the ment, such as the Natas Like oraxing from Adjanismit to Palvitars, or firmer to bodier beleven the countries, such as the Amu Darya in Adjanistatir's north within a texture of the Valisitiant, and Tournettan. The Murghes Neir In the critit here in Transburg Valisitiant, and Tournettan. The Murghes Neir In the critit here in the United States and Hardmut Dar here was from the bodier with lian backer Baney into that country, and the waster of the Hardmark Dire bodie in the Advance strate resources in Adjanistan are board in international free estimated the Vision of the Landars estate resources in Adjanistan are board in international free basing (Prime K Auru, 2004) (Prijun 15.

However, Alphraistins in ord devo in having to divid with international inters. Across the globe three as 20° controller transcrutautes, interf control parallel to divid the transtantice of the globa (Choten & Well, 2011; Well el al., 2005; Uk-Vrianz, 2013) and one 400 the globa (Choten & Well, 2011; Well el al., 2010; Uk-Vrianz, 2013) and one 400 the globa (Choten & Well, 2011; Well el al., 2010; Uk-Vrianz, 2013) and the globa (Choten & Well, 2014). The strange comparison of the globa (Choten & Well, 2014), Well el al., 2010; Mortal el al., 2014). The strange compared todays all whether thems (Choten & Well, 2011).

From those, 64 introductory river basins are in Altica, 60 in Asia, 68 in Europa, 48 in North America and 38 in South America.



Figure 1: Major River Bealms of Alchenisten (MEW, 2011)

The way that incretions dual with such other has schedule through different rules and objectives that is wern interminated with ''s propertic durities there acceled to respect acts in their's researce use and rulesch allowagely providing they are not regardleway directed in a supportain way. Water, however, is specify in thread there are two specific reasons (first thread there is a support in transmission). The support reasons have the support of the support of the support of the support shows in a subport of the support on the matcher place. Subscript the support is shown in a sub-script thread there is an end the subscript. The substance is a subscript thread thread the subscript the subscript the method of the local sites reasons of the subscript. The subscript the method for subscript the subscript the topological strength of the subscript result.

Over the years there have been different perspectives on how to deal with international rivers, which range from "believing that a country has the right to develop its transboundary water resources anyway 1 kilos" to "believing that a country should expect in the future the same intrive of water resources it has had in the past." The former, is often referred to as the principle of "absolute termition" where country's used to any the same introduce termition severative termines. they would like with an international river within their own country regardless of the effects to other countries (such grown/eterm). This has been rejected as a principle of international water line at places too much control in the hands of some players at the expense of others – usual, downteams tables. Also, in environmental international law them is a principle of the significant harm' under which tables should avid conducting activities in their territory, which have significant relative impair on the tables.

The "believing that a country should expect in the future the same inflow of water resources it has had in the past" is often referred to as the principle of "absolute territorial integrity" where the anticipation of countries, usually downstream, is that they can expect to experience the same amount of water resources that they have had in the past. This essentially means that a later developing unstream country paged develop its resources as it would diminish or negatively affect a downstream country. This has been rejected as a principle of international water law as it places a virtual "veto" on upstream development in the hands of the downstream country. Similar, but slobbly different, is the principle of "historical rights" or "prior appropriation". This is where a country with a transformulary river develops faster than its neighbours and thus begins to use water so that when another country, usually upstream, starts to develop, the downstream country claims that is has previously used the water and has a 'right' to do so in the future: thus, limiting the development of the upstream country. While there are some parts of certain countries where this is allowed, the western states of the USA for example. It has been rejected as a principle of international water law as it sets a status out of water use that cannot be altered, International water law, however, acknowledges that changes in water use over time may occur. In fact, it specifically talks about considering "present and future use" and leaves out "past use".

International law has evolve to adverse torth these externs perspectives and there are importing the galadit conversion which conversion may be some galaxies or transfering entropy of the source o countries using a transboundary river and that the use should be reasonable in the specific context of thet basis,?

International law of water promotes the take that countries sharing a transboundary river should come to an agreement on how they will manage the river. Fundamental to coming to agreement on water use is cooperated and takeyous benefacing agreements on water use and river management are particularly important as we face the challenges of climate change and population growth.

#### Afghanistan's Need to Develop its International Rivers

Compared to the neighting quarters, Algunitation is highly under developed. Table 1 thoses impaired based on the developed in this closes is which the graphical control (1) the set of th

While it is not a standard measure of development, it is important to load a the relative coastly to stare work for agriculture in a regions under a Adphanestian and its neighbors. Adphanetism significantly large beinds the reset of the region industry Delation. The flagment to the mode is advoced starting industed as it is a these of mattides coastly back in the 1608 and does not be not account isosthermatical. Where this is the flag and the other matting, they have obtained the start account isosthermatical to be other advoced have increased a shafter botting of the Start and the in July 2015 the othered in started coastly have in the other and the other and the start account isosthermatical. Where this is not for all the other matters, they have obtained in the Start and the in July 2015 the othered is stores or expective have increased a shafter

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>7</sup> The concept of "no here" is other states is international water law is often quoted as meaning that a state current developitin doing so it herms another state. It Rather 'to possible effort will be made to avoid causing significant herm', including exchanging information and delogaling, among others, Where it is unavoidable, states also avoid even together to midgate it and discust the event to avoid his it is researcing the causitable for an end herm.

22 millicap.\* The Ministry of Energy and Water (MEW) indicated that the 'real' storage capacity is likely between 100-110 m?cap. Also, there is a project underway to raise the height of Kajaki dam so as to have a similar storage volume as when it was built.

Country	Population (million)*	HDI® GNI 2011 \$koap		Life Expectancy <sup>(1)</sup>	Biorage <sup>re</sup> m%ap	
Afghanistan	33	0.46	1885	80.4	135	
Iran	80	0,78	15439	75,4	396	
Kazakhatan	17.8	0.78	20867	69.7	5895	
Kyrgyzatan	6	0.66	3044	70.6	4352	
Pakistan	192	0.52	4866	66.2	150	
Tajikistan	8,6	0,62	2517	69.4	4232	
Turkmenista n	5,4	0,68	13066	65,6	1240	
Uzbekistan	30	0.67	5567	68.8	801	

Table 1: Socio-Economic Development Indicators in the Region

In short, Afghanistan has every reason to need to build water infrastructure to enhance its agricultural production in order to stimulate greater development and improve its socioeconomic development. This seems to be consistent with international water law and the principle of equitable and reasonable use, where one of the factors to be considered in the socio-economic condition of the populations in the basin.

The Sales Day was correlated in 3.4: 2015 with francing and engineering analytering from the Indian concentration. you officially researed on 4 Jame 2016 by Abrian Dreatined Astron Grans and India's Dires Mester Nanovice Med. The there have a parameter of EVA MCM (of adjusts EEO MCM) is under advantant. She WEEDCOR (2010) distant deduce Pointedation Dars (Salma Dars), Water and Power Consultancy Services (India) Ltd. Retrieved 23 May 2016 Incn http:// High/Heighting gov/article/redlerverige: TOLOHONE (2016, 4 June 2016) Ghani, Mod Houghante Salma Derr, OCOnses, Retrieved 4 June 2019 Fore http://www.kdonses.com/ant/salma-dam-propert/25537-phani-medi-marganetic-

<sup>10</sup>MMate (2016) Country Profess "Adopenistan, Robinsoni 2 durant 2016 from Mitrodute uncom/CountryProfes parce

<sup>\*</sup> Human Development Index, See UNDP (2015) Human Development Report 2015; Work for Human Development United Nations Development Programme, 2013.

<sup>11</sup> General National Income, Sea LINCO (2013) Ideman Development Report 2015; Week by Harran Development, Linked Nations Davadorment Diversiona 2013.

V likener Development Inter, See 19002 (2015) likener Development Devel 2015 mellekis of http://hdvundp.org/sites/defes&Tiles/2015 /human\_development\_report.pdf

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>10</sup> Storage capacity from PAD (2016) Aquantal calculated with current population figures. With updated atorage figures.

### Steps Taken in the Water Sector

Since 2001 Afghanistan has achieved a great deal with respect to managing its water resources in general, Much of the advances made on Instructuodry water related issess have been in recent yars under the current administration (See Box 1). While building on the work of the previous administration, the openness and commitment of the current administration in addressing transformation, with its neighbors has advanced fair and reasonable discussion within the major.

#### Box 1: Key Points of Progress on Transboundary Water Issues

#### Polley:

 Approval of a draft transboundary water policy - awaits final approval of the Supreme Council.

#### Legel:

 Finalization of the Alghanistan Water Law in 2009. Article 8 (8) of which states: "Planning and management of Alghanistan's transboundary waters is included in the mandate of Ministry of Energy and Water and is to be consulted with Ministries of Foreign Alfasies, Interior, and Border and Tribal Alfare,"

#### Inelliutionat

 Significant institutional adjustments – in 2016 the Transboundary Water Commission, headed by the President, and a Transboundary Water Management Unit was established at the MEW.

#### Infrastructural:

- Completion of Salma Dam on the Harirud River and beginning of reservoir filing in July 2015, marking a potential new era in the Alghan water development
- Improvements at the "on-farm" level water management since 2004 where improved efficiencies in the application of water for imgation has been achieved by both the World Bank and the Asian Development Bank.

#### Human Capital Development:

 The government has undertaken efforts to build its capacity in transboundary water resource knowledge. International donors such as the World Bank and the EU are undertaking trainings and knowledge development in key ministries.

#### Regional Cooperation:

- The 2013 agreement between Finance Ministers of Alghanistan and Pakistan, on exploring the development of the Kunar River for joint benefit of hydro-electrical production (Thomas et al., 2016).
- 2010 and 2014 MoU on Cooperation in the Development and Management of Water Resources of the Panj-Amu Danya River Basin with Tajlisistan, which involve exchanging data and information.
- January 7, 2016 MoU with Iran, which amongst others, includes committing to address transboundary water issues.

One of the themes that continued to emerge from the interviews was the improved political will and openness of the current administration to address transbundary waters. This was seen as one of the problems, which existed under the previous administration where abite through tack of understanding or commitment, building transbundary water relationships was not viewed as a protry.

This expension and commitment has resulted in interiming and capacity building recognition on immolecularly selection, provided by down south an the Wold Beine (U-MAR), and the UA Mark of these interviewed constantion these effects and the selection of an advance of the effects of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the descent of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the (nucl the thermational France for the selection of the selecti

In addition, after a hinks of nearly 30 years, combinition recommensed with support form this, on the failthan with in the Hartmin differentials. It was completed and begans (Hing In July 2015 maniput the first major storage infrastructure to be developed in this new emit, Batty 2015 maniput the storage infrastructure to be developed in this new emit, Batty 2015 maniput the batty and begans and support and storage and storage in the Matty addresses a number of issues, including theoly, transport and security, Fial on noise the importance of addressing value interacts:

"Given the significance of the Harirud river for both countries, the Parties agreed that in addition to forming a relevant joint teekforce, they will conduct studies with regard to water condition and capacity of Harirud, based on which, reasonable and just water

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>10</sup> The agreement was signed by Chief Executive Dr. Abdatah Abdatah and Vice President of Isan Eshagh Jahangiri in Isan on 7 January 2016.

distribution will be negatisted consistent with international laws and regulations, and within the fremework of economic, transit and tracle package agreed upon between tran and Alghanistan." (MoU between Alghanistan and kan, 2016).

However, despite the adhievements and advances made, some interviewers filt fails mane could have been done to promote transboundary waiters, particularly under the providous administration; il was noted that the current administration needs to make transboundary waiter a priority as Afghanistan depends on agriculture, and dimate change is likely to make water resources increasited, adfinal to maneau whese more interstructure is deviced.



esponsible for protection and management of water resources. Figure 2 shows the major institutions and their relation with water in te water is such a cross cutfing issue used by different sectors, there are different water institutions in Alghanistan which are Mohanistan.



Under the 2009 Afghan Water Law, "management and planning for the transboundary waters between Afghanistan and its neighboring countries and changes of watercourses are the responsibility of the Ministry of Energy and Water (MEW) with agreements from the Ministry of Foreign Alfairs (MFA), Ministry of Interior (Mol) and the Ministry of Border and Tribal Affairs (MoBTA): (Article 8 (9)) However, in practice different scenarios for dealing with transhoundary waters emerged depending on circumstances. For example, it was during the "economic conversion forum" where the Ministers of Finance (MoF) of Pakistan and Alghanistan announced the interest in pursuing the Kunar Cascade projects. In general, the Ministry of Energy and Water (MEW) has been central to issues pertaining to transboundary waters, Also, there is an understanding that the international nature of any dialogue with neighboring countries would recessible the involvement of Foreion Affairs. Moreover, as many of the issues related to transboundary waters will involve infrastructure and economic development, the Ministry of Finance (MoF), with its relationship to international organizations such as the World Bank (WB) and Asian Development Bank (ADB), is also a key institution in transboundary water dialogues. Consequently, in May of 2016 the president created an inter-ministerial transboundary water commission (Figure 3). The president's office (the President) chairs the three key executive members, Associate members include other ministries related to water and the National Security Council



Associate Members: Wristry of Agriculture, Irrigation and Livestock: Parliamentarians, Ministry of Justice, National Security Council, National Environmental Protection Agency, DABS, and Ministry of Economy

Each of the executive ministrises has declarable technical-staff services on transloordary water issues. These staff have vecked together and have undergone capacity building together through an extended program supported by the World Bark (WB). There is a Technical Unit for Transboundary Waters Management in the Ministry of Energy and Water (MEW), declarable staff in the Ministry of Energo (MD), and increased froms on the issue in the Ministry of the Ministry of Energy (MD). Froigh Alles (MAA) under the Directional to Board Allea and Boardy Cooperation. They have meanly their developed transformative submit and intermitional and the unserties to help them on the tables and the transformative submits and the transformative submits and (Direct) established, which they is applied all the transformative submits and the stoses and improves collaboration at the technical land their (SCAL). The land proton was added in 2015, and match is a row land by the "Result. Aller direct from the submit and the technical land their (SCAL) and Const. Iteration are added in 2015, and match is a row land by the "Result. Allered Const. Iteration are added in the Direction of the Matching Theoremative Waters Reflect protons that with a submit of the Matching Theorematical Waters Reflect protons that with a direct variant to cooperate and collaborative with the originaria states in order to table the easing proteins on the Matching Theorematical Waters Reflect protons the states winners to cooperate with the originaria states in order to table the easing proteins on the Matching Theorematical Waters Reflect protons the states of the states and the states and the states in order to table the easing proteins on the Matching Theorematical Waters Reflect protons the states in order to table the easing proteins on the Matching Theorematical Waters Reflect protons the states in order to table the easing proteins on the Matching Theorematical Waters Reflect protons the states in order to table the easing proteins on the Matching Theorematical Waters Reflect protons the states in order to table the easing proteins on the Matching Theorematical States Reflect protons the Reflect protons the states and the states in order to table the easing proteins on the Reflective Waters Reflect protons the Reflective protons the states in order to table the easing protons the Reflective Protons Reflective Reflective protons the Reflective Reflective protons Reflective Reflective protons the Reflective Reflective protons the Re

## Introduction and Context of The Panj-Amu Darya Basin

Of the time major mixer therein in Adjanistian, Pauja-Arno, Davya holds its place as one of the most important rivers based on geographical area covered, amenge annual flow, testled oppolation, and it pointrial for agricultural growth. Pari-Arno, Davya basin covers annel y XXI of Adjanistrants surface area, contributes agroceimetry 30% to the courty's annual water yield and holds nearly 2006 of the Adjana population (planm, 2016).

The geneter Amo Daryo Basin is part of the target AvI Bas Basin. The AvI Bas Basin's ear is more than 1-2 mBon spaces Molennee (UMFAO, 2012), and is horne to more than 100 mBon people in site countries: Adjamandan, Tajakitan, Nargenstan, Tuchennisan, Tuchennisan, and Kasahandin (Tgine 4). Alwo Fan and Yo dhu Basin's population levels in Adjamandan Tuchennisan, Tuchennisan, i la projected that the basin's population will increase to more than 120 million by 2020.

With the exception of basabitute, the other accurates are generality poor and valuements there merging and too miscurises (bitterios on OD and 101 — Beine bitter). Agriculture plays a law get in the regional accounty  $T^{2}$  No Adjustantas, TAN of Tajulatas's and 454 of too some third walk and the regional accounty of the transmission of the other some third walk and the regional accounts of the transmission of the other some third walk and the regional accounts of the transmission of the Adjustantas's and the Adjustantas's the transmission of the transmission of the Adjustantas's the transmission of the transmission of the transmission of the transmission of the Utabulation (DMFAO, 2012), Therefore, brief hard and water are for regions in at dimension to transmission of the transmission of transmission of transmission of the transmission of transmissio

The available arable tand in Central Asia is geo-politically significant. There are more than 59 million ha of anable land, of which 32.6 million ha are pertinent for imgation (UNFAO, 2012). Uzbekistan and Kazakhetan, which are located in Turan plain of Aral Sea Basin, have the highest lade availability for applications and impairs. The sharkston is limited for Taplication and Kingystan since low the operativity in its monotannous part of Anal Sies Basin. Heavily 10% of Kazakitatisti Sotal area. 00% of Uzbeckstant, 14% of Turtmension<sup>4</sup>, 71% of Adjunctation<sup>5</sup>, and 10% and of Taplication and Kingystants in and Miguitation<sup>2</sup>, 2012. While here is great inferent in the segmentation of adjunctation is an and to limited. 2012; Junited here is great inferent in the segmentation of adjunctation is and many landscale of particular terms and the segmentation of adjunctation and terms and the segmentation of adjunctation and adjunctation and adjunctations and adjunctat

## Hydrological Backgrounds/surface and Groundwater Transboundary Resources

The Planchout Dupps Basin is bound as the monstation of the instabulan and Plane' ranges with an elevation range of 2000 million of the plane is an bound. The opper character bound, Andre and the the Plane's which superisons than the Plane is not be Allowing and Plane's Basin and the the Plane's and the superison basis that the plane is a strength and the plane is the Allowing Strength and the plane's strength and the strength and the strength and plane is the strength and the strength and the strength and the strength and the Allowing Strength and the strength and the strength and the strength and the Allowing Strength and the strength and the strength and the strength and the Allowing Strength and the strength and the strength and the strength and plane is the strength and the strength and the strength and the strength and plane is the strength and the strength and the strength and the strength and plane is the strength and the strength and the strength and the strength and plane is the strength and the strength and the strength and the strength and plane is the strength and the strength and the strength and the strength and plane is and the strength and the strength and the strength and the strength and plane is and and the strength and the strength and the strength and the strength and plane is and the strength and the strength and the strength and the strength and plane is and the strength and the strength and the strength and the strength and plane is and the strength and the strength and planes and a strength and the strength and the strength is a plane is the strength and the strength and strength and and the strength is a plane is the strength and the strength and strength and and the strength is a plane is the strength and the strength and strength and the strength is a plane is the strength and the strength and strength and the strength is a plane is the strength and the strength and strength and the strength is a plane is the strength and the strength and strength and the st



Figure 4: Distribution of Area and Water Resources in Area Darya Beain (FAO 2012)

Bring the langest error is the region, the Parylevin Ubps threek 2.500 km, of which 2.50 km is on Adjacents Noders with Tablackin, Calibatakin, and Transmits, will it reactives in first determination, where the im Ubathalian (PrintedRams), 2006), The continuents of the Parylavian (Bank, mort in dirgs) to bathalian (PrintedRams), 2006, The continuents of the Parylavian (Bank, mort in dirgs) to bathalian (SA) Add Vall (Marco, 2016), and robots the discretionary plane area, a approximately, SA) Add Vall (Marco, 2016) and robots the discretionary discretion (SA) and (SA) and

The main FuspNets Days of the barries of the interm metry areas well that allows of the Amplitude Tabless, and Amplitude. The memory table and develope of the Am, Days a majorial balance if the TABLE, 2011; this is not Palance, 2019, Amplitude and Ampli

The Paip Renk: In this upper section of the basin is considered to account for bahewen 12-35 and or which allowed 10 mm are estimated to be prevented in the Adjanenitis portor. The Kannfaghan Neur, with 23.3 mm in 1 rajustan, and skirts Darya with 5 them in Uzbasham. are the right basin tabulance of the Anzu Darg Renk Neur The Zandham Rhome companying in Tajustania is advantated to be advant 10 km. The other mays tributanian with the Advantation and the is advantated and 24 show three products (MML 2010) (Placets).

Country		As % of the total area of the country	Average Total ennuel flow(km//year)	Water withdraw (kzs/Vyear)	Water withdraw (%)
Afghanistan	167,473	25.4	22	5	6.25
Tajkistan	125,450	88	50	7,5	9,4
Kyrgyzstan	7.800	3.9	1.5	1.5	1.9
Uzbekistan	364,630	81.5	5	33	41.25
Turkmenistan	359,730	73,7	1.5	23	28,75
Total			80	70*	100

Table 2: Avange Annual Flow to Anna Darya from Each Riparian Country

"The missing 10,000 million m<sup>1</sup> is probably lost along Amu Darya and in its data at the Aral Bea

Searce: (Harren, 2010)

The total groundwater resources of the Areu Darya basin excluding Adjunctions to entimeted to be 14,71 million of which 15,11 million annually, the explored (UMAAC), 2012, Adjunctions have significant groundwater resources, which are externised to be auround 18 million or your Oflias), 2000. The estimated groundwater resources in northern Adjunction bases 74000 mBios million million of which 4500 mBios million bases para Darya, base 74000 mBios million areautar (Adda 2015).



Fisure 8: Main Weder Bources of Athendates in the Areu Darve (Duran 2017)

#### Main Water Uses, Infrastructure and Potential for Development

Agroband practices are one of the main sectors combining baseds economic growth and basic mediparents to certar hasts. These is more bains 2.8 million to bail to Certar hasts maintails for impation and agriculture expansion (UMFAG 2012). Currently, he area which is similar for impation and agriculture expansion (UMFAG 2012). Currently, he area which is similar for impation and million has not of which 2.3 million has in Tuthermanian. J.B. million has in Tuthermanian, Geld million has in instrement Agripaniana, and G.S. million has the Tuthermanian of the Certar Haster Courter's weak which and explore the simple courter of the Certar Haster Courter's weak developed and equipped during the Soviet Using from the 1950 hose 1940(B) (UMFAG 2012).

The total imgated area in Central Asia increased from 4.5 mHen ha in 1995 to 7 mHen ha in 1991. The expansion was fadilisted by large infrastructure projects in the Amu Darya Beain This induction once than 60 waite reservoirs and 45 hydropower plants in the AMI Bea Beain (UNFAO, 2012), of which 35 reservoirs with a capacity greater than 10 mHen m<sup>2</sup> and total water attract of 258 km<sup>3</sup> are within Amu Darya Basin (UNECC) 2005. The largest hydropower plant is Nurek in Tajkistan on the Vakhsh river with a capacity of 2700 MW (Wegerich, 2008).

The construction of the Rogun Dam, with storage capacity of 13.3 km² and hydroaletticic capacity of 3,600M/w, has recordly been started (BBC NEV/S, 2016). It will potentiatly be the larged dam in the region. However, the proposed operations of the dam indicate that them will be IBBs change in dow on the saver sections of the Varish River, and thus the Amu River, its effects on Afghanizat appear to be very Imited (Polyy, 2012).

Impande apriculture products account for BMs of Adphanetaris's national crop output, bland on antiditis manyen, UNRA's attempts what the fault implement bench adphanetaris in immer than 3.8 million hat, out of which 2.4 million is reported by the Adphanetatish Minishry of Benzy Water to be neithalized, what ad Adphanetaris 'registrate land' a white Halmed Feber Bain and Northen Have Bains of Adphanetarian. The Internant Bains contains 48.0% of impatch back, "USA for blan terms and back data additional the state that the state of the Adphanetarian Have Bains of Adphanetarian 17.1% or blan terms and back additional the state additional the Adphanetarian back and an additional the Administration of the Bains (etc.), and the Pariphene contains 17.5% of bala terms and end (Add). 2015.

Due to the add clambs, approximately water use in Central Auis is estimated to be 11000-1000 mNa (0.00 AU) and 0.00 AU) and


#### Figure 6: Water Flow and Water Withdrawel in Central Adu (Vistor Hovitov and Philip Raboseta: UNEP/OPID-Regional Acril 2005)

Based on state plans, water withdrawal from Amu Darya will increase from both Tapikisten and Tarkimenisten, which intend to increase their irrigated land by 50,000 ha and 450,000 ha of land, respectively, for latiting rise, cottor, and where (flatbox, 2012).

More then 90% of Algorisatives impand lexis are traditional community managed impatron systems, which are developed, namaged, contend and general by the back communities based on acceptate assistant Research. Natak 17(9), about 333,000 has dim rigitable lands are used formal genermental migration systems. The formal fungation systems rules mann canada, irakase, and regulators. Table 3 shows imgitato systems rules and the 200 has dim show to WHY & MAUL, The Alta Unitable and the Park-Park Carbos in short Alta 201 has dim short incorpts (1000 has is managed by the government (ADG 2015). These are glans to increase the imation waves in the Park-Park Darbos based on (Table 4 & 6.3).

No	Scheme	Provinces	irrigable area (hs)	Main structures	Remarka
1	Sang-i Mehr	Badakhshan	3,000	Intake and main canal Q=2.5 m <sup>3</sup>	Run by community; maintenance by community organizations
2	Kunduz• Khanabad	Kunduz	30,000	Diversion, left and right canal, regulators	Upgrading completed in 2010 with EU assistance
3	Shahrawan/ Lower Kokoha	Tashar	40,000	Intake, main canal	Water flow managed by government; maintenance by community organizations
4	Gawargan	Baghlan	8,000	Intake, main canal	8,000 ha out of 20,000 ha ourrently cultivated; water flow managed by government; maintenance by community organizations
5	Kilagay	Baghlan	20,000	Intake, main canal	Water flow managed by government; maintenance by community organizations
	Total		101,000		

Table 3: Inigation Bystems Mainly Managed by MEW & MAIL
---

Source: Force & Karral (2004). Watershed Adas of Alghanistan: Vall, Parts LeW, Updated by MEW.

Alignments has 240 M/ of operational hybridgener capacity and coverage ( $\omega_1$ ) 5% of the field parabolics of a routing 210 M/ bits bein reference. The eff-alignment is the entropy of the eff-alignment ( $\omega_2$ ) and  $\omega_3$  and  $\omega_4$  and  $\omega$ 

Namo	Name Province		Installed capacity (MW)	Current cepacity	Irrigabio area	
Puli Khumri 1	Baghlan	HP8IR	4.8	4.8	14787	
Puli Khumri 2	Baghlan	HP8JR	9	9	13420	
Jerm	Badakhshan	HP	0.5			
Chata	Badakhshan	HP	0.1			
Nalan	Badakhshan	HP	0.1			
Farghanbo	Badakhshan	HP	0.3			
Sang Aab	Badakhshan	HP	0.1			
Faizabad	Badakhshan	HP	0,25			
Baharak	Badakhshan	HP	2.2			
Warsaj	Takhar	HP	0.5			
Kheshem	Badakhshan	HP	0.1			
Total P	ani Amu		17.95	13.8	28207	

# Table 4: Edding Hydropower and Multi-purpose Dame in Pary-Amu Basin

#### Table & Proposed Large Multi-Purpose Projects

	River	Main use	Power (MW)	Storage (kim?)		Inigation (ha)	
8cheme				Total	Live	Editing	How
Kelagai	Kunduz	IR/HP	54	416	129	38,899	12,165
Hasantal	Nahrin	IR		18,9		4,100	5,170
Warsaj	Talogan	IR/HP	45	320	214	63,110	10,000
Khanabad RO	Talogan	IR/HP	10,5			36,226	0
Qalai Mamay	Kokcha	HP	445	1815	138		
Lower Kokcha	Kokcha	IR/HPr	30	1.4		108,355	25,547
Upper Amu*	Amu Darya		1000				
Dashtijum*	Panj		4000				

HP = hydropower, IR =imigation, MW = megawatt

Source: Landel Mile investment plan 2013, 'Source: Fichther 2013 p2-6,

# Legal Considerations

During the Solvet Union's regime, the Central Asian controls' water resources was manupped by controllected antimation in Moscow. Based on the controllect drawing, the downthese regimes makes, Turkmeniate and Utbabilities, were developed to produce control webs optimem. Tajolitate and selferd to the week of implicition of Hydrogene generation during the summer. Tajolitate would then necelve of and gas generated delocity from the downteem mitled on the week of and gas generated delocity. From the Boolet en, Adjanization and Krygraption were viewed as simple sources of water without having and registry of the Source (2014).

In Segundar 1987, the Soliter/G-Tarinal Cound of the Solid Missip of Lad Reclaration and Web Mangement clocked on the annual water distribution first for the Union Regulator of the Annu Danya Basin and at the same time creater Rever Basin Organizations (Bassense's Volces Ordentineted)(Vol), in the same year, Proceed 56 of the Solisitific-Tachinal Cound, satisfather with/samelifinis for four Central Asian regulator of the Annu Danya (Wegneth, 2018), the hold is the emission first Asian regulator and the development of the Protocol. The a Basin solitor and Protocol. 106, of the Centraloculum Key and Danya and Protocol. 486, 1

Country	Billon mblyr.	*
Kyrgyzstan	0,40	0,6
Tajikistan	9,50	15,4
Turkmenistan	22.0	35.8
Uzbekistan	29,60	48,20
Total allocation	61,50	100,0

Table 8: Extraction Lindle for Ansu Darya as per Protocol 686

Under Protocol 566, the total annual volume of the Amu Darya was estimated at 70.23 brmlyr, Beyond the 61,50 brmlyr, the Council estimated for 8,73 brmlyr in losses, including 3.48 brmlyr of losses in the reservoirs, 3.15 brmlyr in sanitary Bews for the Amu Darya; and 2.1 brmlyr in estimation from Adjametistes <sup>10</sup>

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>14</sup> Protocol 566 of the meeting of the scientific technical council of Ministry Land Reclamation and Water Management of UBSR, 10, Sept 1967, Registrion IIB,

<sup>19</sup> Table 1 Protocol 505.

After the collapse of the Soviet Union, all five Central Asian states signed the Cooperation in the Field of Joint Water Resources Management and Conservation of the Interstate Sources. Accessed (1992 Almaty Accessed) on 18 Sentember 1992 in Almaty Under the accessed "the existing pattern and principles of water allocation" were respected, which is understood to mean the same water use allocations proscribed in Protocol 565. The 'energy for water' exchange, which was set up and administered by the former Soviet Union, has been difficult to maintain for a variety of reasons, including economics and the socio-political attitudes of the different governments. Significantly, in the latter part of the 90s, the increasing price of energy was such that it favored exporting energy resources to outside the region by downstream states. At the same time, unstream states continued to surply energy to its non-ulations for prices that were below recipited market prices as an economic stimulator. This led to increased discord whereby energy was not supplied in adequate amounts by downstream states and upstream states held back summer flow water for winter generation. Declining precipitation further played havoc with the water resources, particularly in 2011 and 2012 when reservoir levels in upstream states uses at all-time bars (Model Bank 2004). Consequently, deanite interventions from the international community, including USAID helping to broker the 1998 Long-Term Framework Agreement, tensions over the energy water exchange emerged and led to a collapse of the exchange system (Baidey 2017) The international community including the United Nations and World Bank, has been working for over a decade to help establish a new more effective. water-energy agreement, but so far, a functional agreement on water sharing and allocations has remained elusive (Paisley, 2017).

Adjustmian had previously made several bodier studied tradies with the USER had built with water, However, more of them specified any allocation of the shared waters of the Parje-Mus Darys Rever. The 1948 agreement boards on the shared waters of the countries as the missioni of nonsignitor, filthware, of the new where the new in invergible and the halv-sup point themative. The 1948 agreement skiboards the regime along the bodier (hader wing as it common manipation, filthware, of any chainers. Article 7 advectes the minipation of the formal waters of the regimes and in processing 7 and etc. The start of the start waters and in processing. The relative table start of the st

# Antibale 7

- The term boundary (or footiler) waters in the Treaty means those waters along which the footiler like runs in accordance with the Soviet Alghan frontier demandation and redemandering documents of 1947-1948.
- The contracting parties shall take measures to ansure that in the use of bontier waters, and the waters of the rivers which flow to the frontier or into frontier waters, the provisions of this treaty and the special agreements between the Government of the

USSR and the Government of Afghanistan are observed and the mutual rights and interest of both Contracting Perties are respected.

 In accordance with the general principles of international law, paragraph 2 of this article shall not apply to those waters of the Contracting Parties which are national internal waters and which are converted by the national legislation of the Contracting Parties.

Article 8 (1) stated: 'Both Contracting Parties shall be allowed the use of frontier waters up to the formirer line', I' Newwwr, this does not mean 'use' as generally thought of in terms of water extraction. It must be interpreted with the remainder of Article 8, which is entirely devoted to issues of maximum. Hence, 'use' in this term refers to using the water for boats.

Other interesting articles include:

#### Article 18

Questions concerning the use of boundary waters shall be governed by special equivariants between the contracting parties.

### Article 17

The competent authorities of the contenting parties shall such any a singlery as possible such information concerning the land and volume of water in boundary river and also concerning precipitation in the interior of the territory of the two parties are might event damper or dampage from floading. The competent authorities shall as measures when damper or admission of the damp period of their water.

Under the agreement "bridges, daws, and other similar structures leady to hinder navigation or influence the flow of water shall not be erected on frontier watercourse except by agreement between the two Parties'. "Concerning the issue of barrie erosion, such that dylese or walls being built on the Tapk or Turkmen side of the river that are exceptibility erosion problems on the Adiption side, are else oble with in Article 19.

<sup>1 1858</sup> Frontier Agreement Art 8 (1),

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>11</sup> 1059 Frontier Agreement Art 19 (2); this is also supported by Art. 20 (1) which calls for special agreements to be developed for reack (bridged) and waterways interacting the frontier line.

"New dynas which might affact the flow of water and the state of the banks, and also cause damage thereto, may not be erected on frontier watercourses except by agreement between the two Parties".<sup>10</sup>

This unequivocally states that such bank protection and construction, as is currently being done, without Alghan consent, would be in breach of this treaty.

A subsequent protocol to the heaty of 25 June, 1950 on the Joint Electricol of Works development of infrastructure to utiles waters in the section of the network development of infrastructure to utiles waters in the section of the network for  $I_{\rm eff}$  and  $I_{\rm eff}$  with sense means hybrid-power and inglator, Joint surveys were to have been concluded in the system (1950-1950 on the Adjustme of the invession of the invession of the section of the network section (1960 on the Adjustme of the invession of the section (1960 on the Adjustme of the invession is the section (1960 on the Adjustme of the invession (1960 on the Adjustme of the invession) and adjustme of the invession (1960 on the Adjustme of the invession (1960 on the Adjustme of the invession) and adjustme of the invession (1960 on the Adjustme on the Adjustme on the Adjustme on the invession (1960 on the Adjustme on t

Although the 1985 Treey is admost 00 years oil), its provisions are still relevant in that truthmentaut, Usebatian and Tajkinka wich are adfacted by the 1980 Trauge, how actual as though they are implementing the testy, or all least have not derounced the Treety once they again of independence following the obligation of the Silver Linka, where he tables and produces form the testis of formal water related issues between Aghanistian and Central Asian countries, it is worthwide to review their adjustantia to 2011.

Under the Afghanisten post-Taliban era, the Afghanistan government has made efforts to cooperate with neighboring countries on transboundary watars. Several Memoranda of Understanding (MoUe) on data and information exchange have been developed with Tajikistan including.<sup>21</sup>

L Agreement between the Government of Tajkistan and the Government of the Islamic Republic of Alghanisten on Cooperation in the Area of Development and Management of Water Resources in the Pari and the Armu Darva Rivers (25 Oct 2010, Kabia)

<sup>19 1858</sup> Frontier Accessed: Art 19 (2),

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>10</sup> Protocol Between the USBR and Algoristics on the Joint Execution of Works for the Integrated Utilization of the Water Resources in the Provider Section of the Anna Darya, 25 June, 1998, Art 1.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>11</sup> Protocol Between the USSR and Algorithm on the Joint Execution of Works for the Integrated Utilization of the Water Resources in the Frenher Section of the Jenu Darva, 25 June, 1998 Art. 1 & 2.

Protocol Between the USSR and Algorithm on the Joint Execution of Works for the Integrated Utilization of the Water Resources in the Function Section of the Anna Darva, 25 June, 1998 htt 3.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>17</sup> See Ado Tomo, Nargis Halerova, and Naim Egnar (2013) DRAFT REPORT - Improved Management of Water Resources in Central Asia, Asian Development Bank.

- ii. Memorandum of Understanding (MoU, 2007)
- Minutes of Meeting (Protocol) signed by the MEW, the MLRWR, the MoA and the CNP of Taijkistan (03 August 2007, Dushanbe)
- Agreement between Governments on Mutual cooperation on Transboundary River Use and Protection (2007)
- v. Minutes of the Joint Meeting of Delegations from Tapitatian and Aphanistian concerning Bank. Strengthening Works on the Panj River (March 2007), and Strengthening Transbounding Cooperation in Water Resources Management between Alghanistan and Taplekistan in the Upger Pany-Anux Darya River Basin (Northern Allantic Treaty Organization derivorement and Security Initiative, Acaeuty Initiative, Acaeuty
- vi. MoU between the MEW and the MLRWR, (September 2006)
- Cooperation Agreement on the Reclamation of Hydropower Resources of the Pyanj River (April 2006).

Policing Te 2010 Agreement, mound meeting tabeen these loss contrins have been the folialiset by URCA, as end of these meetings, as met demonstoom of URS-table 2014. Moreon 1, asso signed to 2014. Software house the ratios for the posted of 2012-2017 and and the start and distribution of the Policy and the start and the start and the start and the start and compares in the scattarge of hydrograd table and thermation on angulae, matually interdiated interfaces the three-bottpe lates. How is distributed to the scattarge of hydrograd table and where hydrograd tables and to too start and the start and the start and scattarge in the policy and the start to too start and the start and where hydrograd areas in the Mol discusses the order of hydrograd allas and where hydrograd areas in the start too start and the start and scattarge in the start and the start and the start and the start and scattarge in the start and the start and the start and the start and scattarge in the start and the start and the start and the start and scattarge in the start and the start and the start and the start and scattarge in the start and the start and the start and the start and scattarge in the start and the start and the start and the start and scattarge in the start and scattarge in the start and scattarge in the start and scattarge in the start and scattarge in the start and the s

## Potential Challenges for WMmanagement in the Panj-Amu Darya

In nost cases around the word, patientially in interlight company contrast, water scattury might not be the way problem, microlic is the institutional case immorphil failber has well in sensors sharitors (Ging 1996). This might be very here about the Araf Bea Basin. For stocates, the basin has laters univery non-management and translationare wall are used to be applied to calibration of water-interlieve cosh cross in the downteream regions of Arai Dupy and Byparty, Libektistan and T-thormaria, has an danget to the harmonican balances of the down termine cosh cross in the downteream regions of Arai Dupy and Byparty, Libektistan and T-thormaria, has an danget to the harmonican balances of the down termine cosh cross in the downteream regions of Arai Dupy and By-Corell Arai unclubulidy have costate an unaxy policial environment balances the regions to content (Britanzever, Bay, Peeber, 2017), verse of contour certes in Adversition have hindered the chances of improvement, including progress in infrastructure and noninfrastructure foundation of the country's water resources. The current stability of the last decade, has provided Afghanistan with opportunities to enter the competition over shared resources and table the most of its freeh water resources.

It is not only line Adjustance Tablet, four allow the endocements of comprehensive analysis, the tablets at since server and the endocement of comprehensive analysis, devokepement galac, Constativeng the population growth main, 8-A, and having more than 85 MeV. The endocement of the endocement of the endocement of the endocement measured as an assessment all plater for in social and economic devokepement (Nociola, 2017), and having home destables result and theories in the way of submitting the Adjustment and the other and having these destables results and theory in the instationarial waters? During the research and having these destables results and theory in the instationarial waters? During the instation biological and organize biocessisticat into memory galaxies memory the instationarial biological and organize biocessisticat into memory galaxies memory the instationarial biological and organize biocessisticat into memory galaxies memory that instanders and biological and organize biocessisticat into memory galaxies memory that instanders and biological and organize biological and the instationarial and the other biological biological and organize biological and the instationarial and the other biological biological and organize biological and the instationarial and the other biological biological and other biological and the instationarial and the other biological biological and other biological and the instationarial and the other biological biological and other biological and the instationarial and the other biological biological and other biological and the instationarial and the other biological and the instationarial and the other biological and the instationarial and the other biological biological and other biological and the instationarial and the other biological descent and the other biological and the instationarial and the other biological descent and the other biological and the instationarial and the other biological and descent and the other biological and the instationarial and the other b

## A Need for Strong Political Will

Under the new Adjuins administration, here has been increased political will be measurement and development of Adjuinsation's water reaccesses. Bealthy, the anappresent the Adjuinsation's translocationary waters has able become more specin. However, the marght of interimentation and the second translocation and the adjuinsation's adjuinsation's only autism units exist challenging but much the rule of Adjuinsation's and a law programs on the management of adjuinsation and waters in the interim of drain's water in but apportment in human's the law level of anish water spectra of the management of adjuinsation's attemption and the law level of anish water spectra of the management of adjuinsation's attemption and the law level of anish water spectra of the law level of adjuinsation's attemption and the law level and information and anappoint and adjuinsation's attemption and the law level diversion's advect resources, is in detring to the law of diversion of the law of a diversion's advect resources, is neeting to the law of diversion of the law of adjuinsation's advectories and the law of adjuinsation's advectories advectories and the law of adjuinsation's advectories advectories and the law of adjuinsation's advectories advecto

"Mighanistan is endowed with plenty of bash water, though, we suffer from water scarcity, food insecurity, or water disesters because of the poor government leadership in managing and developing this resource."

Lack of interest in productive engagement with neighbours is also viewed as one of the major reasons for the lack of advancement on developing badly needed storage capacity in the country. As conclusioned on the public Alphanotania capacity to use advantant mater resources of Parity Arms Darya is wery been comparing to beamsetiment. General Associations: The base theorem has been been gane golden years in terms of gaining the international community's trust and accessing intermational indust for developing targe-scale inside interpretish including dams. However, advanced the magnitude of right handworking in common strategy in the sector has also remoterion in the scale of the common strategy in the sector has done remotering the loss of the common strategy.

The interviewees believe that Afghanistan's insbilly to control its waters should be addressed in favour of its people. Almost all respondents believed that the government could reach a better water deal when it will be able to control its resources. One of the interviewees added:

"We cannot think of progress in transboundary waters with neighbours, without making progress at national level. As long as our waters flow out of borders without our controls, no one will care about our limitations in accessing water resources."

## Lack of Good Governance

In addition to lack of policial will, many interviewes life that the decision-enabling with respect to and hostator, convertices and development, as well as constraining and expressions, as not an sufficiently transpersed. Nany decisions made in the paint may have been made for personal and reasons and not necessary with the aim of benefining Adpartations as a which, Fort that the the the Pal-yims Darge Basin had not nearised the attention it deserved over other basing, One Interviewer included that:

Traplementation of [a] water project is not based on a national water marker plan and essential needs of the people, as no plan exists. Projects are prioritized and funded by government based on the poblical preference of the region and influence of powerful local authorities on their central administration."

From a transboundary point of view, lack of a comprehensive national water master plan was also pointed out by another interviewee, from one of the Central Asian ocumities, as a chaterope, As the said:

"Having no information regarding Alghamistan's investment and water master plan of the Party-Amu Darya to clarify the Alghans future water use expansion is a concern for the downstream countries."

## Insufficient Infrastructure and Equipment

Algorization has the basic devolution durate instantisettate in the region. In internet envessels and enveloped the result option result of the second secon

Among the maps Adjunn into tasian, PanyAmo Ibaya it the batal obviolation of the PanyAmo Ibaya comes apposituative 30x of the coursys user moreovers to the water datation capacity in the basis to off; 10 (JMPAR), 2015) to 20% (Idem), 2016), the (Idem), 2016, 100 (Idem) and an analysis of the strength source communities of adults of Ballan cable mark annuality (Makcal Among, 2006). This is Halla market to Solar, adjusce them how been provided to the 300,500 her with estimates water market to Solar, adjusce them how been provided to the strength or basis. See other and the foreign adjusce to the strength or the strength or adjusce to the strength or the s

Water conflict between Taloghan and Kunduz farmers is a serious problem during the irrigation seasons due to lack of enough stored water."

Another interviewee, mentioning the imbalanced water use in Pani-Amu Darva region, added:

"Our people in Panj-Amu Derye don't have enough water to drink or produce food for their lemibles, while our country's matters flow out and gets used by the neighbours for colleming water intensive counts de collato."

The high available potential for development of ParyAmu Darya has been assessed in proposed projects under the 2013 ParyAmu Darya Investment Plan. After completion of three projects in Amu Darya Including sketagay. Upper Amu or Lower Park, and Lower Rekcha Irrigation and hydropewer projects, water withdrawal from Amu Darya will increase to 6,000 Billion oubic meet #1 2020. (Newn 2010) and 97:000 has find will access relative water.

<sup>\*\*</sup> This does not indiate the contribution of the flow in the Kunar from Pakistan, which is about 10 bom/w.

resources, 277,000 ha of land will newly be imgated and about 1100 MW electricity will be generated in Panj Amu river basis. Large-scale hydropower projects are also included in the investment jain of the Panj-Amu Darya.

## Climate Change, Extreme Water Events; Flood and Drought

Anu Days is indicated to be under high stress for water resources (Matermal Waters Marchands, 2012). If the time change dense may predict are adde to be given generated and other attended batters, be earling bearins will increase on water resources in the region Materials. 2017, Based on fail densembers and water index of bearing based predictions for Adjunction will be stress the term of the data of the prediction resources as the methy provide the data of the data of the data of the data of the resources are the methy provide the data of the data of the data of the data resources are the methy provide the data of the data of the data of the data for the data of the data of

The peak flows in the inverse, particularly in upstream Tajkistan, Kryogizatan, and Alghanistan, will decrease and will be shifted from summer to spring with a decrease in overall magnitude and more frequent flows as precipitation fails more as rain and tess as none. Additionally, increasing temperatures in the monatanes will cause therwing of permatrices, which may mobile measure landstellase and motifiest. (In Alghab Pruntan, 2014).

It is not only scientists that are occossned with the consequences of climate change, but also the majority of interviewees believe that changes to the pattern and form of precipitation will be a serious thread to water availability in Alguharistian and as well as the enter region. Some of the responders even noted their own first-hand observations of shrinking anowpack on the high mountains of Par-Anu Darys Bann:

"You might have read abacit clonate change in books or journals but we have been feeling it our neighbourhood in north Alghanisten and have noticed how much the amount of guideour has shruch. And it month years we have measured less snow during wohers. The fash flood events have also been more frequent. And this may release that wa we are beginning to be so our ancient guideours."

The next volume will be reduced due to hother and direr clunate in the region (Dr. Mikko Puskari, 2014). The wammer climate has already melled much ice, and it is predicted that by 2050, 40 to 50% of glactiers on this mountains will have melled (Droogers, 2012). The implication of the changes will be more pressure on the shared water resources of the Areu. Dava, which is already under stress caused by increaseing demand and poor management.

## Destructive Floods

Picola in Algunation have increased applicating due to detectation and registricito losses which piloty decreases the water fixed registration of the block. Algunation that share and VAI of its forse convolutions 1990 and 2000, taskilling 44:200 h ku/200, 2016). The dimass programmer, and large care of Algunation than and its a convoly more in the blocking-lack of enough loss correl anti-care have allowed floading to device planteet and houses (Helsing 1994). The share that 2000 hourses are subscribed into 2012 to 2014 with the interact counter and hourses trends and county the most share the counter prove the most source much house trends and discupit the most economically destructive even in Algunation (MIMOR) 2014

## Failure in River Bank Protection

Che of the other service of allenges foring the Panyhmu Darya Basin is new bark widening. The materias for whiching inducts the bick of flood contrast structures, such as dans for controlling floods and protecting river barks, intensive rainfal and flash flooding (probably association) day elimites changel, editorially of vegatation on river barks, and detextion of the firstet conver in catchments leading to encours and downstream flooding and sudmentation (ADB, 2015).

Several Interviewee node but Adjustian has never food a permanent and autoritable studies for increasive protector for the Physichs Darper to be approximable too and house protected and by prevent all excession. Bank endows is a natural phreamenew with an and house protected and be prevent and excession. Bank endows is a natural phreamenew with bank, such as the test too Physichs Darper, and a physical phreatest, and have a strain the removal, excession the test protection and on the physical phreatest and protection and excessions store of the interviewed that the destruction effect on Adjunction's banks by driving the water towards Adjunctian. A one the removements that

We have no cheer border algraduendmarks over the borders alongside Panj-Anu Danya since they have all beend washed out by focods and every day we see how river bank lining (on the) Tajkitsten side affects negatively the Alphan agriculture lands since the water flow releastion leases haveding towards Alphanstern (an,<sup>\*</sup>).

It is worth mentioning that Arwu Darys is the river with the second highest sediment load in the works there that hange his in Chairs. Thus, the riverteed in the plains is not very table and often exhibit IUNHAD, briggistion in Central Asis in digrees, 2012). The Ministry of Apriculture, frugation, and Liversch in Aprianstan, estimates that in the sea 14 years, nearly 15,00 ha of anaful lark has been bot by Annu River's relaxations for Ministry of Apriculture, Tablar and Kinduk, Anni me "dilases have been consolided validitive" being provides Bahh, Jonegin, Tablar and Kinduk, Anni me "dilases have been consolided validitive" and the provides Bahh, Jonegin, April 1998. Currently, more than 54,800 ha of agricultural land are under serious future threat and 100,000 ha are under a moderate threat, And about 28 villages in the area are at risk of destruction (Stankiza), 2016).

Following the Afghanistan National Strategy for Water Sector, the Ministry of Energy and Water has planned a riverbank protection program under which some projects have been designed but not yet implemented due to funding immission. The total budget for Afghanistan bank projects in five river basins has been estimated to be \$ 0.82 billion (ADB, 2015) out of which about hell for the Pan-Arm Dane.

#### Policy Gaps /Limited Implementation

Undear defaunction of responsibility and lack of integrations among line ministries over projects encode to be addressed in usere trav revision. VOLD, 2019). Economic territoriveness believe that the 2009 Water Law del not sufficiently and claudy darfore auch line ministry's function and responsibilities, reventing in depletation in some among, and gas in developing projects in other areas. The problem of ministries competing for similar projects is also problematic. This stands even to come tege projects, One interval

"One exemple of having limited coordination is the Salma Dam in which its impation network has not been developed parallel with dam construction. How it will lake pears to get the Salma water into impation works. We seem to practice HVRM approach but the work is devided in several administrations."

In addition to a review of the 2004 Adjunctian Water Law aiming at darking robs and responsibilities of the line ministries, those interviewed belaves that there are challenges with implementation and application of the existing policies and renadoming them to objectives and goals of national programs. Some of the key tasks include Initiational capacity, low availability of referent data, and lad of corrections of some ministrian ministrians.

To address issues of policy gaps or overlapping reaks in shalling with transtoundary waters, the government has dreads a Orth Michaell' androuodary Water Policy, which outlines specific rules and responsibilities, the process for addressing issues, and he general principle for tab to applied when obtaining with neighboring outlines. The drift policy membra at high tyrocoanit level Labelian on host address specific issues and a borging printerulpes with printee interesting with specific groundwater issues, will be addressed either through negativors on a case for special basis the need artiscs.

In relation to transboundary waters, in addition to improving the coordination and oblibbration between MEW and MOFA, working on capacity bulkling and institutional empowerment will be necessary to imclement the OrdIt National Transboundary Policy.

## Need for Skilled/ Experienced Human Resources

During the interviews, the majority of the negonders's mentioned the gaps of skilledissperienced water professionals as one of the challenges for sector growth both at the national and transbundary level. While at the national level there is lack of qualified water experts, there is a death of capacity among Alphan diplomats, who understand water diplomacy and are able to deal with intervisional transbundary waters practices.

Respondents identified the incrotance of the country's water resources and the necessity operative activation to the hervine capacity gas of the sector by oblighing special capacity building programs for oblighting but water experts and water distants. In close relation with this challings, the dial calculated cancillation curvely available in univariates wheat the updated, Water resources related tables in Adjanantsen universities have not been updated in each other and tables used in a section of the capacity of the and the neutral behaviours. And table two matches are updated in each other hereins. And table two matches are updated in each other hereins. And table two matches are updated wherein the mean tables are updated and the capacity of the section of the section of the section of the section of the and the section of the and the section of the section of the section of the section of the and the section of the section of the section of the section of the and the section of the section of the section of the section of the and the section of the section of the section of the and the section of the section of the section of the and the section of the section of the section of the and the section of the section of the section of the section of the and the section of the section of the section of the section of the and the section of the and the section of the and the section of th

There had a chance to pursue my master degree abroad, in one of the Central Asian countries. And I realised that our education system is not engiged with new technologies including remote sensing and other new engineering techniques while other countries use this technology to conduct neeseech is the ender engin.

The lack of resources, both financial and human, at the river basin level were also identified as key areas where there are opportunities for improvement:

To car department, we don't have quidéled unière experts to help us with the accomptishment of our responsibilities, for example river basin planning, or doing explaineing design. This government should use the interactive approach to encourage qualified experts to come and work in remote areas benicles providing more educational opportunities accide the accentry for Adprain in water sector. \*

Adding to the existing human resource chalkings, some of interviewees criticized government's hing process, which they real has not been sufficiently transporent. It is maritorial that although there are younger skilled people who have been trained abroad, undorstrukter they are doen not reconstruct.

"The strategic positions are often filled based on political consideration as opposed to based on ment. A few people within ministries have all the power in their hands and they don't allow others to take rate and responsibilities."

Also, there is often a belief with many developing nations that what is produced by international specialists is always better than what it produced by local experts. This is generally true for Afganatistan despite international experises deno being in the country for a limited time. and not understanding the context well. Local nationals with expertise and younger professionals with qualifications are often overfooked. There is a need for the government to embrace its local experts and knowledge, as well as developing a strategy to build the local coexist. Namely:

- · Assess the needs for specialization and availability of education for students,
- Assess opportunities for improved education both within the Alghan universities and abroad (Millowships, masters' programs, courses and training, etc.).
- Explore linkages between Alghan institutions and international institutions in water management, and in particular transboundary water management; and,
- Assess the need for increased capacity development and professional training opportunities for Alghan diplomats and officials.

# Data Gaps and Uncertainty in Knowledge of Water Resources/ Lack of Transparency in Sharing Hydrological Data

Presise and accusate date is the most laps/forant alement for program management of any seconds. These are different flagses and information or rem block of alloss, in the case all grandwater algorithm, regarding the almost water resources and acculate assets are in the regime information of the second seconds. Algorithmics have been also were also been reasonates in the regime can be advanced. Algorithmics have been also been algorithmic and the resources and the algorithmic term and the second second second management of the second second second second second management and the second second second second second second management and the second sec

"With new technologies like remote sensing the data gaps can be covered and we should not continue (to) see lack of data as an obstacle for starting negations and dialog over our shared waters,"

It was further mode by some innervances that the neighborurs in the Pari-Annu Dany. Boars are not assee of Adjanantias's values development programs in northern of Adjanantian and the inte caused concerns as they do not from how this may change the water regime. This countries have tilles to not dise shart Adjanantian is gluming or how they might be immatched, then they efflicitly be critical of any potential development cut of a sense of faux. This is not a head have not the own debaques. The reality is that data sharing—motify hypothogoal and methorological data used to thereast with an availability and reality in the material material material reality and regregation manage (parket) construct—meaning vary limited. Due speet roled that there is list to an instruct data for the hypothemic bary Basim Monowork in the Careful and accustines are on the material data for the hypothemic bary Basim Monowork in the Careful and accustines are used to an instruct data for the hypothemic bary Basim Monowork in the Careful and accustines are used to an instruct data for the formation of the structure bary data for the speetra (Appareting Appareting Appareting

Poor data is not limited to Algonistiss. Although there are institutions developed by cound Asian countries including learnated commission for Warks Coordination (EUXV) and the respective Basin Water Organizations (BWOs), the transmission of poor and inscructed author than been an obtained for marking submitted south and byodarm decisions mediated prantibuotudy water resource management and implementing relevant policies (Uternative, 2012), 2012).

# Legal Challenges

The 2004 Adjustments Water Law enforces the management and planning the translocativity where a the measurement of the Methinsy of Barrey and Water in appearement in the Mething of Freeze, Advances, the Mething of Barrey and Neural approximation of the Methinsy of Barrey and Section 2014 and Section 2014 and Section 2014 Advances and Section 2014 and Section 2014 and Section 2014 and Section 2014 advances the Institution of Section 2014 and Section 2014 and Section 2014 advances the Institution 2014 and Section 2014 and Section 2014 and Advances (Section 2014) and Section 2014 and Section 2014 and Section 2014 and Section 2014 and Advances approximation and advances and the Institution 2014 and Advances (USB) and Advances and Section 2014 and Section 2014 and Section 2014 and Advances (Section 2014) and Section 2014 and Section 2014 and Section 2014 and Advances (Section 2014) and Section 2014 and Section 2014 and Section 2014 and Advances (Section 2014) and Section 2014 and Section 2014 and Section 2014 and Advances (Section 2014) and Section 2014 and Section

The fixed of a lateral agreement over Paydens Darys shared waters between Agreement and Comfalia and constraints tables memotional as a low distantial in diversitying infrastructures in the Party-Intro Darys range of Algorismics. As noted in the section on Logari instructures in the Party-Intro Darys range of Algorismics Algorithms and USER was reported in the Vision 1018 global strength and and USER one Party-Intro Darys partial more to footer agreements and neingdion on address of the Algorithms and USER, was increaded to the Constraint and Algorithms and USER, was increaded to this constraints maked the interval more than and USER was increaded to the constraint model. The Algorithms Algorithms and address the address of the Interval and the second and and address and the particular shares and the second and address and charlos uses of the paralisities of the USE Forder Agreement. Allower, now fait when a la association of the paralisities of the INE Algorithms and the law association of the paralisities of the INE Algorithms and the law association of the paralisities of the law the mode with address of the start and the paralisities of the USER Forder Agreement and the one with address of the observable and the paralisities of the USER Forder Agreement and the total the network and the paralisities of the USER Forder Agreement and the total the start and the second data paralisities of the total the network address of the observable and the paralisities of the USER Forder Agreement and the total the observable and the paralisities of the USER Forder Agreement and the total the start and the second data paralisities and the total the total the total the start and the second data paralisities and the second data address and the start and the second data paralisities and the second data address and the start and the second data paralisities and the second data address and the second data address and the start address and the second data address and the second data address and the sec or all the responsibilities and agreements of the larger datar tables, but it does have to take on term responsibilities. Teaming the root adopting at the strength term of the data with the 1976 I feature Convention on Subcession of datates in respect of Panatase, Cons were it then 1976 I feature Convention on Subcession of datates in respect of Panatase, Cons were it then responses of the strength term of strength term of the strength term of the strength term of the strength term of strength term of the strength term of the strength term of the strength term of strength term of the strength term of the strength term of the strength term of strength

What p4 interviews note that is drawing up bert water use for the Ad Barch has the DBR marginated in the 4 Adjunction in the DBR's water research. In a balance that the Control Adaus contributes have controls the same parks of discosting Adjunction in the independence bifterman. 2016; Moleki du saming of the 1923 Adjunction and attributes the discosting of Protocol 350, which marked Adjunction and amount to only a control adjunction and Protocol 350, which marked Adjunction and amount to only a control adjunction and a strain adjunction and a mount to only a control adjunction and Protocol 350, which marked Adjunction and amount to only a control adjunction and a strain adjunction and a strain and a strain a control by by the benefits a street comprehensive resulting and adjunction for state in the balance Add the street is a resonance of Adjunction to the included in assarcting in rights while discussment and ellograph Control Adjunction.

Some of the interviewees believe that although Alghanistan water rights have not been recognized by any of the Natorical agreements between Alghanistan and USSR, those agreements identify USSR's complexiterior of Alghanistan as a state at the time:

"Alghanistan was consulted and negotilated over Panj-Amu Darya water resources even if it was on boundary and navigation issues. Alghanistan has a weight in the Basin which cannot be ignored."

The interviewees believe that without having an agreement over shared waters, attracting the support of intermitional donors to invest in Alghanistan water projects will be an issue. In the words of one expert:

"At the beginning of the Karzai administration many donors were interested in hunding and building large water storage infrastructure in Afghanistan but Nite was done, and as more transboundary issues arose donors began to lose interest as they realised downstream states would be affected. And right now there is rarely any donor who wants to work on building dams in Afghanisten without there being an agreement first."

Instead, one transvess none that the international done commuty has toget concounds the development of a android methodicy topk and promotice disalogo with neighboring states. The reasons basine Alphantan's exclusion from Anno Darys's and international internation and the advectional of DBR and the Control Anno Matternational internation and the advectional of DBR and the Control Anno Alphantants patient international or DBR and the Control Anno controls and resonants and resonants of DBR and the Control Anno controls and resonants and the advectional of DBR and the Control Anno controls and resonants and resonants the Matternation of DBR and the Controls and the DBR and the Control Anno advectional of DBR and the Advectional of DBR and the Advection with Decloped and endotropic streams of the Advection terms with DBR and the Advectional advection of DBR and the Advection with DBR and the Advection advection of DBR and the Advection with DBR and the Advection advection of DBR and the Advection with DBR and the Advection advection of DBR and the Advection advec

## A Later Developed State

Series a spectra transverse memory and the stategory of the traditional value use in downtrawn controls during and states. As noted transport, the trajection, the state is the tradition is water resources for a number of reasons associated with the document of traditional states of our dynamics. The state is the state of the state of the state of the state resources with Adjunction have any transmission in water inference of the land of the transses and the state of states are states. In the frame is the state of the state of the state of the state of the states with the state of the states with the state of the states with the state of the stat

"B will be a demanding task and time consuming to adapt to changes and new water efficient approaches in downstream countries since they got used to it. The increased water use in Adjunction might be a concern for other partial countries in Annu Darya but it's invehible for Adjunction on the use resources for powerty reduction and development."

Increase in Afghanistan water use is mentioned to be a concern for downstream countries of Panj-Arm, though most interviewees from Central Asia emphasised the fulfiment of Afghan water needs, As one said: "Due to the internal instability, Alghanistan didn't pay much attention to the management of transboundary rivers in Central Asia though now the successful management of neiter has become the factor of peace in relations between neighbouring states, especially where we liek about more than two takes is now been."

## Limited Public Awareness

In the view of majority of the Irean/exerces, there is limited knowledge among Afghan people regarding water's refer in economic deretopment. Most people do not have the perception of water as a national commosity, which needs to be invested on in the survice of economic deretopment. Also, there is bes awareness regarding the encessity and less interest in negatiation and database even Afghanisms transformative waters.

However, some of the interviewees have a different perspective and believe that Alghan waters must be owned and used by Alghanistan abne. Also, they see a strong need for public awareness programs regarding international water law and international practices over shared water resources.

## Population Increase and Demand Rise, and Economics

The Central Asian region, including Afghanistan, has one of the highest population growth rates in the world. The rise in population will undoubledly increase the demand for water for food production and domestic uses. Since the majority of Afghans live in rural areas, water assessibility is vial for their kinehood, both for driving water and inguinon.

Many of those interviewed believe that Alghanistan will face greater challenges in the future to provide income and employment for its young population. One of the interviewees from Central Auta meritioned:

"Despite last decade's complicated political and economic situation in Afghanistan, population growth has not been affected and the country's population has doubled since the 1980s."

The increased demand for water from necessal population has remifications for the commany and the trikin of popula the radius. Several of those interviewed noted that with increased competition over water resources there are less employment opportunities for null inhibitions with other horizons the nucles. This statution is accusated by the increasing lack of secondry in null areas. It has been appointed that improving the water inhibitions with other population and those docted of the may net new and here improve the ecconory of the null areas, not only taking pressure of the urban contrasts but also healings to does more statisty. 

# Opportunities in the Panj-Amu Darya Basin

Nearly all interviewees emphasised Afghanistan's abundant water resources as the national wealth. Referring to the water scarce region of Central and South Asia, they valued Afghanistan's fresh water, which needs to be cherished and used for the country's economic growth. As one execut opinid:

"No country can technically stop Afghanistan from using it[a] water resources for development and poverty reduction. Afghanistan needs to seriously look at its water resources as its main natural asset to meet the Sustainable Development Goals."

One of the interviewee from a Central Asian country stated:

By hydrographic principle, Alghanistan is [an] essential part of the Aral Sea basin and Alghanistan should be considered as an important player in water-energy system in the region."

Adjustmich estimating hydrogene potential is fait to earther grant topototry for the outry's grade has al earnes for cooparative in militoriums. A province of a large potential for hydrogenet (anticallar) is the hydrogenet potential (or the base is large potential for hydrogenet (anticallar) is the hydrogenet potential). The hashing it becomes the signal wavely control for bridging exemption. Central in hashing it becomes the signal wavely control for bridging exemption. Central Junio cantino to energypoor Good has at tables. The interveness belowing that there is grand for Adjustmatis to landy work, with Central Aution cantinus on the hand hydrogener potential. In singly the potential is hydrogene generation for their economic grants and every set Straffsort/ determining 2005.

As discussed in the previous section, there is a good opportunity to further promote these common interests and parsus development of the Upper Annu and the Dashtijum dams which could potentiatly have 5000 MW of Installed capacity (Figure 7). These are reported to be high on Tajikitan's priority list as it sees fault as a major exporter of elucricity. Provided Adjunction can realise its share of change, at hould be able to participate up to a level of annual. 50% of the overall investment, providing options for supply to the national grid and export to China and, in particular, Pakistan and northern India (ADB, 2015).



Figure 7: Location of Proposed Upper Ama and Dashtijum Dam Sites (Panj Ama Investment Plan: 2015)

Other proposed dams, entriely within Alginetistics, could amount to some 855 MM of additional power (Tradie 5), Keerging min mit hat the current production in the Pari-Arwa Danya is 17.56 MM, this would be a significant increase in energy production. Also, there are deer areas of potential benefit haring with constraism neighbors is constructing where tanzage infrastructures in Alginariatan. Encouragingly, them are served areas where cooperation nerve writer can be developed and und as for potent for this development.

- Turkmenistan and Afghanistan have considered jointly developing the Parij-Amu Darya River for hydropower development to improve energy supply nationally as well as developing a source of foreign revenue from international sales
- Updrawn intrastructure in Alghanistan and jontly on the Pari-Awn Dana with Tapikate cold asset in reducing software transport and stark enation issues, which are problematic in the basis. The Pari-Awn Dana transfers a huge amount of sedment basis, ending and demargin preventianis updrawn and them setting sedment downtream which can negatively affect impation systems in Ubdesistan drummeistane. Segnater requisitor of the first updrawn stores storage.

high water levels and flooding can be mitigated. Greater regulation will mean that catastrophic bank ecosion will be reduced and thus sediment deposited in the downstream areas can be controlled

 The two proposed joint projects mentioned above serve as a great opportunity for upstream and downstream states of the Panji Amu Darya basin and could contribute to internationally backed joint management of shared water-courses

It was noted that:

"Water related disaster is very common in the region, or the problem of sedimentation and flood, and the riparian countries can work on joint projects to overcome these challenges,"

Aprotuber and these were also seen as themp point of mulait interest to postful administration point and seedocomment projects. The normal satisfies presentations for regulard comparison to testesses. Allynamises and Central Asias, Reckardly are United Nations Special Approximation Control and Stangbard Control Comparison. The same source of develops attemption of the same state in the same state of the same state develops attemption of the same state interface and the same state develops attemption of the same state interface and the same state develops attemption of the same state interface and the same state in the develops attemption of the same state interface and the same state interface and the same state interface attemption of the same state interface and the same state attemption of the same state attemption attemption of the same state attemption of the same stat

There are joint local markets particularly for agricultural products between Alghanistan and Tayloidan. There are commercial agreements with Tayloidan and Turimenidan. These are all the platforms that the Alghan government can use to develop agrebusiness in the region."

One of the interviewest from Central Asia believes that Alghanistan should work closely, with each Central Asian country to find common interest for cooperation besides participating in the existing energy-water nexus regional dialgues. Another expert also emphasised the good economic relations between Alghanistan and Turkmeniatan as an opportunity, which can be extended to water-based cooperations.

"We have good economic relations with Turkmenistan which can be expanded to address water issues, and possibly engage other neighbours. I am totally positive that cooperation over shared waters with Central Asian Countries is possible."

The economic opportunity for Afghanistan with regards to regional trade should not be underestimated, If projections regarding the "new silk road" are realized, new transit routes and trade routes will allow for protect few of goods between the ocurrities. Not only are electricity, here being environed, bui increased transport through heiging and navigator corrected to ratal links are also being discussed. Adjuarizan is part of the Central Ada Regional Economic Cooperation Program, withich is initiating greater conventionly within the region. Water resources, hydro-power and agriculture can glay a key rele in heiging Adjuanisan to postion liait In this existing organin.

The coppleg support of the international community for Algunatian has also been seen as orgonourity in centrally the estiding challenges that the county focus. Many interleviewes fait had particularly in the Kalal and Pany Anu Canya basise, these was strong support for Alguna development and encoursignment to the gain was all as amogeneous with disconstream neighbours. There were indications that more could be done to leverage the influence of the dones for technical methanism. All an estiding the intergeneous disclapsus.

Finally, the increased activities of civil society groups within Afghanistan's communities in recent years has been mentioned as a great opportunity for the water sector to promote values. related to water use including water efficiency, environment protection, and to increase public awareness recarding the importance of transboundary water practices. As one of the interviewees described, the compliaity surrounding the management of transferundary waters could be excluded to the rublic fround social media and anademia. Indeed, this will be necessary for making the public ready for any dialogue, which Afghanistan may engage with in the future. Increasing, the awareness and understanding of transboundary water issues for the opvernment, parliament and the public will be a key challence in the future. It is critically important that the general public, as well as those engaged with policy development and implementation, to understand concepts and principles around integrated water management as it applies to international water basins. As an extension of integrated water management, transboundary waters also need to be understood by those affected by decision-making. And as noted, decision-makers need to engage with appropriate stakeholders to help inform the decision-making process. Increasing awareness in transboundary waters will require a variety of "scientific knowledge, applied engineering, and anthropology, coupled with astute political and legal understandings" (Shroder, 2016). In addition, an understanding of the issues by the media will be important to help build awareness within the public regarding transfoundary water dialogue with neighbouring countries,

# Analysis and Discussion

Unitorization, five of the projectic isolatified in Adjainstants' Value Resources Management documents have been imperemented (parso, 1951). In the stat document have been apparated from the target documents on environmental and clamatic charget, powerly indicates, inpublication control, revenues generations and employment constructions, and publications, inpublication control, revenues generations and employment constructions, and publications, inpublication control employment controls, values and the state of the constructivity and financial of the waiter inscreteding to the social-controlic statefinder of Adjatuments.

During the research, almost all introvieness were hepdaled the damps in perspectiveting also were accounting by the live left of the real geometries' factors listening transformation and the second second second second second second transformation and the second products and hepdoposer generators for the Arganismic Located Max, 2010. They emphasised that the hepdopole generator devices the domestication of the second second second second second second second second with the answer of its analise land, it can once agains to end of the new head production and advected the method second of the Maximum Second second second second and advected methods are as all in the hospital noise, it is also that all relevant and devices the terms of the hospital noise, it is also that all the hospital second second second second second second second and hepitalized second second second second second second second second and advected second second second second second second and advected second second second second second second second and second second second second second second second second and second s

However, one of the log areas to address will be the last of water management prototes in the region. The main water management coils of the Raykow Days basin is noted in water intensive crops (othor, amongst others) and as well as indificiency in high water use (Robody, 2000). On this note, it is anot mentioning that the founding states of the International Fund (nr Aid Bas have agreed to adhres to international water law, which promodes "filtering" use". An other by pring and Substategas(2010):

The inherent commitment to equilable, reasonable, and mutually advantageous water resource use would imply recognition of Alghanistan's interests in the Amudarya ... (King & Sturtemagen, 2010)\*

While it is that that even in the nearest pair Adjustistic has been luft out of water diagoes in the Amy Bain, here is an operating for future generative for entropy and been included in discussions and deals regarding electricity (fabore, 2012), Adjusting overnment after settingen engloration conference and coldbaceling on international projects, and these are existing Module with Talgicitan on data entropies. However, despite the trajectory of these are existing models with the setting of the coldbace and the setting of the coldbace and the setting theory and the setting of the setting of the coldbace and the setting of the coldbace and the setting the setting of the setting of the setting of the coldbace and the setting of the set of the setting of the set of the setting o water allocation in the Paris/Ansu Darya, Esseed on del USER systeme. Due to limite behaviora approxim, while all and optional technological classification of the singular allocation complexity. Algorization and single tables allocation between the complexity of a salar radiation and the single system of the single system of the single system of the single system componenties waters are control and all dynamics between the single system of the componenties waters are control and all dynamics between the single-sing

To record years, we have noticed Alphanotators reciprocal interest is unanovational toxics in Cardinal data and stating its positive and andianese. Bhangh we recording them to participate persistency is all regional processes on water. It is doubuit bathyphanotanis in the man datawa with bocame part of the water-watery diskapat of cardinal Asia, And I will take much them to hong topphene all the actival ophision, but it is the essential card of waterbate development in the flucture.

There are opportable in which Alguratate is increasing its incoherent, for example the organ multi-letter World have inpresent cluster in the other than 5 mergs and Water Development Program. This prayed has a core objective of prioriting orange and water and incoherent. Another example is the "Central Asia Water Resources Management Project", and incoherent. Another example is the "Central Asia Water Resources Management Project", and indicated and and and and world with the molecular and and and and and incoherent. Another examples is the "Central Asia Water Resources Management Project", and public Algo and Water Instructions Information for improved water resources downon. monitoring, and management in student Central Asia Water Instruction.

Finally, there is optimise regarding development on transboundary issues in Para/Lown Dony with Centha Jacon contenin, in comparison with the Kall Mither Basin with Parkien, The relationship basesen Adjanantia and Central Asian courtries involving energy dash, such as and transmission experise, that are transport, and good indicates of a sound parallal and economic atmosphere in the Central Asian region, Aggiunstain can make the most of its relidentiation of a sound parallel as an engine transmission of the most of its relidentiation of the central Asian region, Aggiunstain can make the most of its relidentiation in the optimum region.

## Recommendations

These recommendations stem from an analysis of both Iterature and reference materials, but primarily from the thoughts and considerations of the experts in advancing Afghanistan's position with respect to transboundary waters. The recommendations here provide a practical starting point to help assess policy on transboundary water.

### General Recommendations:

## leeve 1:

There is a lack of a dear coordinated strategic plan for future developments in each basis which work all dev higherisation to understand and disalogue with molphours regarding future uses, At the national literal, a comprehensive national and managements is each needs. This work flighted Adjustments have water resource growth and improvement is each needs. This work of an excess the strategiest of the strategiest of the strategiest of the strategiest of an excess the strategiest of the strategiest of the strategiest of the strategiest dear molectration is place, which advectes the concerned development procession.

### Recommendation 1:

- a. Althe national level, develved trait, vel coordinated and approved (Minishi basin plane which can be used or advantish or rained water infrastructure development, as well as is discussions with neighbors on trans boundary water issues. These basin glace whold induce beam specific dimension theoree antipation trainingies and articulate the rain of international organizations such as UNEP or World Bank in the implementation process.
- b. At the transboundary leval, an assessment should be carried out to examine potential brends sharing with neighbors, as well as any potential negative effects of developments in Alghanistan, These assessments should be carried out for each basin and serve as the basis for strategic encapement with neighbors.

### leave 2:

There is a problem associated with data availability and accuracy that leads to a lack of confidence. Based on the feedback from mool of the key informants interviewed, existing data is not accurate and reliable. Oata availability and accuracy will play a big role in making basin plans, and in negotiations with co-sparan states.

#### Recommendation 2:

An assessment of data collection agencies/institutions and prioritization of data collection stations

- Creation of a comprehensive list of the existing priority issues and challenges in data collection agencies
- b. Assessment of Hydro-meteorological stations and prioritizing stations based on their degree of significance. Priority stations should receive most of the anallable resources, attention and incentives, particularly in locations where operation and maintenance is difficult, such as stations in bodier areas with less security or those at high alloudes with handh direct conditions.
- c. Improving hydro-meteorological data collection and the reliability of data and increasing the use of GIS and other remote sensing programs.

### leeve 3:

Poor relations among transboundary water institutions including poor data and information sharing between these agencies.

## Recommendation 3:

Strengthen the relations between transboundary water institutions:

- a. Regular meetings of the Transboundary Water Commission (TWC) in order to allow transboundary water institutions to discuss their related works. In addition, consistent discussion of transboundary water related issues at platforms such as Supreme Council of Land and Water (SCoLW).
- b. Improving data sharing mechanisms to make data available for kay polyoykecision making ministries, institutions and even the academia. Regular data and information sharing is needed, especially between MEW and the MPA. It addition, create a mechanism where MAL and MEW can share hydrological data such as through a joint data base.

### leeve 4

Duplication and/or gaps in institutional roles and responsibilities associated with transboundary waters,

## Recommendation 4:

Clearly define the roles and responsibilities of organizations related to transboundary waters, beyond what is described in the 2009 Water Law. This would best be achieved through the formalization of a transboundary water rational policy.

### lesus 5:

Lack of Afghan led interventions

#### Recommendation 6:

Engage more Alghan exports, both at the centre and in provinces, to prepare the national and river basin master plans in an adequately contestualeder manner. These plans will reflect this reality of the basis in is terms of frameboundary valent, the demands on uses in the basism, the economic bandits for the ocurity as a whole and the level of impact on water availability to neighbouring countries.

## leave 6:

Lack of public awareness on transboundary waters issues,

### Recommendation 6:

Focus on developing extensive knowledge base including material on international practices and regulations of shared water resources. It is important that the public is made aware of the significance of water in driving economic development and its role in improving standard of hings.

- Involve media, social networks, and civil society organizations from Alghanistan, Pakistan as well as Central Asian republics, by conducting joint regional programs conferences,
- b. Provide research opportunities for the academia and research organizations to explore the global history of the management of transboundary waters and its lessons learned.

### leeue 7:

Maintaining and enhancing donor support for transboundary water development.

### Recommendation 7:

Strategically engage donors to assist with enhancing technical capacity and assassments, provide tacilitation for dialogue, and eventually assist in supporting infrastructure development.

#### leave 8:

Lack of local knowledge and expertise to deal with transboundary water issues.

#### Recommendation 8:

Enhance local knowledge and skills to deal with transboundary waters. For example, work with Afahan Universities to teach transboundary waters at the higher education level. In addition, take advantage of local knowledge that exists in Afghanistan regarding water resources, including engagement of recent Afghan graduates of this field from abroad

## lesue 9:

Groundwater has not been discussed in relation to transboundary water at almost any level.

### Recommendation 9:

Enhance understanding and knowledge regarding the key importance of groundwater resources that may exist and be shared with neighboring countries. In discussions with neighbors, effort should be made to identify and understand potential transboundary water resources and develop provisions for their future management.

## Recommendations for the Pani-Amu Darva Basin

## lesue 10:

There is a lack of concrete dialogue with northern neighbours on water allocation issues, and Alghanistan risks being sidelined if it does not actively engage.

## Recommendation 10

Start dialog and trust building by data sharing, joint technical studies, technical assistance and academic exchange

- a. In the case of the Parit-New Darya, conduct joint studies between Alghanistan and Central Asian Countries over the Bood control and riverbank protection. The joint studies, for example, can be started with Tajivistan, which already has a signed MUO with Alghanistan on data sharing.
- b. The government should take advantage of projects like SMART WATERS and PEER project, USAD funded projects for Aghimisten and Central Asian Countries, to promote and support knowledge exchange and joint research initiatives between academic invitions in Aghimistica and the Central Asian countries

## leeve 11:

The Pari-Amu Darya basin has great potential for hydropower generation and has the largest potential for increased agricultural production in Afghanistae. However, its development has not received enough internal attention and its role in combuting to national economic development in Affanistan remains highly under controlled to the control.

#### Recommendation 11

- a. Take advantage of the favourable transboundary situation in the Panj-Amu Darya basin to invest in water resource development. It will be beneficial for balancing population density across the country, preventing internal migration to large cities, and boosting country's load productivity.
- b. Intensity work on implementing the signed MoU with Taklotan and expand that to cooperation on joint Afgham-Taik prepiets inducing the Upper Parip'Amu Darya and Dashilyim dame. Promote the potential benefit sharing of a more regulated new with downstream countries regarding flood control, minimizing bank erosion, and reducing sediment transport issues.
- c. Promote the development of internal hydropower generating capacity on the major tributaries of the Amu Darya.

### leeve 12:

Afghanistan is not a member of any regional organisations in the Amu Darya that are dealing with water management,

## Recommendation 12

Alghanistan should strongly consider joining, or becoming an observer, to the regional water organisations, such as IFAS, to ensure its presence and secure its interests in future regional water deals.

Actively take part in existing regional programs initiated by international organizations such as the "Central Asia Energy and Water Development Program" by the World Bank.

### lesue 13:

More emphasis is needed to link water related issues, such as Alghan water development, with other economic drivers in the region.

#### Recommendation 13

Expand the economic development initiatives, such as TAPI, CASA 1000, and the railroad transport project with Turkmenistan/other Canval Asian Countries to create joint water projects including hydropower generation and food protection in Pari- Amu Darya Basin with succent of international denotes and constructions.

## Conclusion

The main objective of this paper is to examine and focus on 0 Arghanistan's achievements in water sector overall, and in transboundary waters in particular (in the past 15 years); i() major standing challings for Arghanista, and hurdes in regards to dealing with its neighbors on water issues; iii) the existing opportunities – where Arghanistan and its neighbors can relate in regards to be transboundary waters.

This whole reveals that Adjustment has achieved a 1 km regardle to its value resources management, Heiding Instructionaria version, 2016 the Tamstourcamy Water Commission, and a structure of the structure of a structure of the structure structure of the structure of the structure of the structure structure of the structure of the structure of the structure structure of the structure of the structure of the structure structure of the structure of the structure of the structure structure of the structure of the structure of the structure structure of the structure of the structure of the structure structure of the structure structure of the structure structure of the structure structure

In addition, a duft Transboundery Waten Pelloy has been approval a provide, which to point and which and committed of the Addition geometres in regulation to southing on transboundery values. The 2015 and 204 MAAs on Cooperation in the Development and Management of Water Resources of the Pelloy-Annu Coope Rever Bases with Palasance Te 2015 MAdi with Inc., which includes committing to address transboundary water issues amongst for just projection projects also address its solutionality water issues amongst the just projection projects also address with provide the Cooperation of the Kooper Rever the just projection projects also address with provide the development and the Cooperation of the Hand Mark and Bases to address address. The analyzation of address the the the standard the sected prior to 2015, when here was life appendix projections and the standard water and the sected prior to 2015, when here was life appendix and projections and the standard water and the sected prior to 2015, when here was life appendix to addressing the projection address addressing the standard sector and the standard sector addressing the standard sector addressing the projective and addressing the standard sector addressing the projective and the standard prior to 2015, when here was life appendix addressing the projective and addressing the projective addressing the standard sector addressing the projective and addressing the standard sector addressing the projective addressing the standard sector sector addressing the projective addressing the standard sector addressing the projective addressing th

Nevertheless, here are may hourist to cross below Alphanetists can adequately use user resources adhringh to boots its accounty and the landboot of the pack. Key is his are be interesteded appeads of () developing appearement and understandings with its neighbor. In control kass on waits development to cross at adhron of printal systemicality, and ii) under this same of packed periodicality vertex down and the private sector to invest ii development of packed periodicality and private. The site is also and organized periodicality and the address and adjustment of packed periodicality and the private sector to invest ii and Alphanetisms. The packed periodicality and packed periodicality and the packet and Alphanetisms regulators, which solarity properties to come.

As discussed, the Parij-Amu basin offers an enormous potential for Afghanistan to develop both hydropower and apricultural resources. It has the greatest land and water availability in the ocumy, However, not as mutual intention has been given to their region as has been to other regimes in the ocumity over the part 15 years. While Matticina improving both with Tajikitan and Turkmentana, and with the organiz discussions of all Central Asian ocumites in discussion of the organized water management themeson, there is a mail organized water Aphanization to organize positively in the region. This is important to hold been is toom of Aphanization to organize positively in the region. This is important to hold been into an end of endinorism method water induced wite inducations.

The 13 recommendations are policy options for consideration to begin to address some of the important issues associated with transboundary waters and ultimately the economic webbing of the country. These recommendations are not meant as a form of criticiant, but rather as opportunities with which the government can enhance its approach to transboundary waters in the Payn-Am Darya beam.

## References

(r.d.), Water Resources Management Department, Ministry of Energy and Water-

(r.d.), Retrieved from http://wapcos.gov.in/SalmaDam.aspx

(2016, July 24), Retrieved from Note Dame Global Adaptation Index : http://index.gais.org

ADB, (2015), Alghanistan Water Resource Sector Development Strategy: Kabul Weistrity of Energy and Water.

Afahanistan, (2014), Retrieved from Prevention Web: http://www.preventionweb.net/countries/afa/data/

ANPOF, (2017-2021), AFCHANISTAN NATIONAL PEACE AND DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK .

Babow, S. (2012). The Water-Energy Nerus in the Amu Darya River Basic The Need for Sustainable Schulone to a Regional Problem. Olabel Energy Network Institute .

BBC NEWS (2016, 8 16), Retrieved from BBC: http://www.bbc.com/pensian/work-37813015

Christopher Kuorqui, V. T. (2011). Afghanistan Human Development Report 2011, Chapter 2: Water ascurity and human development Kabul Centre for Policy and Human Development, Kabul University.

CIA, (2011), The World Factbook Washington, DC.: Central Intelligence Agency,

CIA. (2015). The world factbook. Retrieved from CIA: www.cis.gov/krazylpublicationathe-worldfactbook/geos/s/.html

D. Z. (2006), The pandered politics of water: Stories of Alphan Wildows .

Dr. Miliko Punkari, D. P. (2014), Climate Change and Sustainable Water Management in Central Asia -Asian Development Bank,

Droogens, A. L. (2012). Climate Charge Arguert and Adaptetion on the Water Resources in the Annu Darya and Syr Darya River Baston : Wageringen : Future Water .

Duran, (2015), Alphanistan's Transboundary Waters: An Overview: Kabul Duran Research & Analysis,

FAO (2016) AGUASTAT factsheet 2015 Retrieved 27 May 2016 from http://www.fac.org/m/water/aguastat/data/guery/tesu/lis

Favre&Karnal (2004). Watershed Alles of Afghanistan Kalsul Afghanistan.

Favre, R. a. (2004). Watershed Altes of Afghanistan . Watershed Atlas of Afghanistan . Kabul, Afghanistan: AIMS and Ministry of Intgation, Water Recurces and Environment.

Fevre&Kamal (2004),

GIZ, (2013), National Water Meeter Plan Ministry of Energy and Water,

Grigg, N. S. (1996), Water Resources Managements. McGraw-Hill,

Habb. H. (2014). WATER RELATED PROBLEMS IN AFGIOWISTAN. Kabul: International Journal of Educational Studies .

Hanasiz, P. (2011). Alphanistan's Food and Water Security Challenges. Future Direction International.

Heal, A. (2015), AFGHANISTAN AND CENTRAL ASIA: Strengthening Trade and Economic Ties, United Nations ESCAP.

Hearns, G. (2017), Dammed II You Do and Dammed II You Don't: Alghanistan's Water Woes, In D. Reed (Ed.), Mater, Security and U.S. Foreign Rolizy (pp. 189-204), New York and London: Routledge Taylor and Francis Group.

Horsman, S. (2008), AFGHANISTAN AND TRANSBOLINDARY WATER MANAGEMENT ON THE AMU DARYA: A POLITICAL INSTORY, London: Foreign and Commonwealth Office.

Homman, S. (2008). AFGHANISTAN AND TRANSBOLINDARY INITER MANAGEMENT ON THE AMU DARYA: A POLITICAL INSTORY. London: Foreign and Commonwealth Office.

Khamzayava, A. (2009). Water resources menagement in Central Asia: security implications and prospects for regional cooperation. Poorri LUESS 'Guido Carl' University.

Klemm, W. (2010). The Alghan Plast of Arnu Daya Basis, Impact of Irrigation in Horthern Alghanistan on Water Use in the Arnu Darya Basis, UNEAD,

Krimt, N. Y. (2005). TRANSBOUNDARY RIVER BASIN MANAGEMENT REGIMES: THE ARV DARYA BASIN GASE STUDY. Bells: Ecologic –Institute for International and European Environmental Policy,

Kuzmits, B. (2005). Cross-bondering Water Menagement in Centrel Asia. Bonn : Department of Political and Culture Change Center for Development Research, University of Bonn.

Landel Mills, (2013), INVESTMENT PLAN FOR THE PANJ AMU BASIN Kabul MEW,

Massood Ahmad, M. W. (2004). Water Resource Development in Northern Algitanisten and its implications for Amu Dania Basin, N.W. Washington, D.C. (2043). U.S.A.: The World Bank

MEW. (2011). Procedure on the Framework for Water Resources Management in the River Basins. Ministry of Energy and Water (Alghanistan).

MEW, (2016), MEW,

Mohammad Waheed Brahimzada, D. S. (2012). Vulnerability assessment of water resources in Amu Darya river basin, Alghanistan, International Journal of Emironmental Sciences Volume 3 No.2,

Odom, O. W. (2011). Institutional realiance and climate variability in international water treaties: the Jordan River Basin as "proof-of-concept". Hydrological Sciences Journel.

a (n.d.).

Peochey, E. J. (2004). THE ARAL SEA BASIN CRISIS AND SUSTAINABLE WATER RESOURCE MANAGEMENT IN CENTRAL ASIA, Journal of Public and International Atlants, Volume 15, 14,

54 A Review of Current and Possible Future Relations in Arru River Basin

Plwy, (2012), Environmental and Social Impact Assessment for Rogun Hydro Power Plant World Bank,

Puri, S., & Struckmeier, W. (2010). Aquifer Resources in a Transboundery Context: A Hidden Resource? – Envelop: the Practitioner to "See II and Bank Infor Good Use. *Transboundery water management:* conclupies and practice. 73–6.

Salmadam, (2016), Retrieved from Wapcos: http://http://wapcos.gov.in/BalmaDam.aspr

Stanikzai, N. (2015), Annu River Migration: Anable Land Exosion in Northern Bonder of Alghanistan. Kabul: MAL,

UN-Water (2013). Facts and figures. (n.d.). Retrieved April 08, 2017.

UNDP. (2015). Aurean Development Index. Retrieved from UNDP: http://hdr.undp.org/sites/doi/sub/Nes/2015\_humen\_developmen\_report.pdf

UNECE, (2008), DRAMAGE BASIN OF THE ARAL SEA AND OTHER TRANSBOUNDARY WATERS IN CENTRAL ASM. UNECE,

UNEP. (2006). Advanistary Environment 2008.

UNEP, (2011), ENVIRONMENT AND SECURITY IN THE AMU DARYA BASIN.

UNFAC, (2012). Inigation in Central Asia in Spares. UNFAD,

UNFAC, (2016), Aquastat, Retrieved from fac: http://www.fac.org/nr/water/aquastat/itbase/index.stm

Uternantov, J. R. (2012). Balancing the one of water resources in the Amu Darya Basin. EastWest Institute .

Vinsent Thomas, P. N. (2011). AFGHANISTAN HUMAN DEVELOPMENT REPORT 2011, Chapter Inte Managing awater resources, accordy and climate shocks. Kalsal Centre for Policy and Human Development Kalsal University.

Wasiq, M. A. (2004). Water Resource Development in Northern Alghamisten and its implications for Amu David Bank, World Bank,

Water Resources Management Sector Strategy . (2008), Kabul. Mamic Republic of Alghenistan .

Wegerich, K. (2000). Hydro-begemony in the Amy Darya Basin. Wegeringen: Impation and Water Engineering Group, Wateringen University,

World Bank, (2004) Water and Energy Nexus in Central Asia: Improving Regional Cooperation in the Syr Darys Basin, Europe and Central Asia Region, World Bank, Washington, D.C. 2004 at v

Wolf, A., Yoffe, S., & Giordano, M. (2003), International Waters: Identifying Basins at Risk, Water Policy, 871, 20-60.



Afghanistan Waters Portal is an unprecedented database of essays, papers, research studies, reports, policy and legal documents, maps, photos and audio and video files on Afghanistan's transboundary waters.

Alghanistan Waters Portal is an attempt aimed at facilitating access to knowledge, efforts, initiatives, resources and human capital on Alghanistan's transboundary waters, and by doing so, empowering researchers, scholars and policy makers through easy and transparent access to information.

Afghanistan Waters Portal, an initiative of Duran Research & Analysis, is an evolving medium enriched by everyone. We welcome intellectual contributions and submissions.

You can visit the Afghanistan Waters Portal at www.afghanwaters.net. Please share your feedback with us at info@duran.af